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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibilities for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquires, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material aspects and not misleading
or deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018
("FY 2018").

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a watch manufacturer with production plant in
Shenzhen and headquarter in Hong Kong. We are mainly engaged
in design and development, manufacturing and distribution of watch
products on an ODM basis. Starting from 2017, the Group launched
its own brand “GRANDBER"” and is extending the distribution
network to Macau.

The revenue of the Group in 2018 increased approximately 4.4%
comparing with the revenue in 2017. Our global diversified customer
base enables us to minimize the impact of the Sino-US trade war in
2018.

The Group has been successfully listed on the GEM on 12 July 2018
(the “Listing Date”) and incurred listing expenses of approximately
HK$13.05 million in 2018, which is the main reason for the net profit
decline in 2018 when comparing with 2017. After excluding this
listing expenses, the net profit of the Group would be approximately
HK$5.94 million, representing a decrease of 32.3% compared with
2017. The decrease was primarily due to the increase of compliance
expenses due to listing.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

2019 will be a challenging year. The turmoil due to the Sino-US trade
war will continue to impact the global economy. The Group aimed
to offer better quality watch products to our customers at affordable
price and will continue to strengthen our design capabilities by
recruiting more design talents and upgrading their hardware and
software for their design work. The Group will closely observe the
market trend and provide designs that suit the customer and market
needs.

In view of the growing middle-class among the emerging market, the
Group is gradually shifting its product focus from quartz watch to
automatic mechanical watch. In order to cope with this change, the
Group will source more automatic mechanical movement suppliers
and secure the supply across the globe.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Board for its excellent leadership, to the Company’s shareholders
for their strong support and guidance, and to the community for
their enthusiastic help, and last but not least, to our staff for their
dedicated efforts and brilliant ideas.

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR T

OVERVIEW

The Group are principally engaged in design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original design
manufacturing basis for watch manufacturers, brand owners and
watch importers across the globe.

The Group derives revenue mainly from the sale of: (i) finished
watches, (i) semi-knocked-down kit, and (iii) watch parts.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$182.48 million, increased by
approximately 4.4% when compared with the corresponding period
of 2017. Although the continuous trade war between the United
States of America (“US"”) and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") brings more turmoil to the global economics, we manage to
maintain the revenue level due to our diversified customer base across
the globe.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a watch manufacturer with production plant in
Shenzhen and headquarter in Hong Kong. We are mainly engaged
in design and development, manufacturing and distribution of watch
products on an ODM basis. Starting from 2017, the Group launched
its own brand “GRANDBER” and is extending the distribution
network to Macau.

The revenue of the Group in 2018 increased approximately 4.4%
comparing with the revenue in 2017. Our global diversified customer
base enables us to minimize the impact of the Sino-US trade war in
2018.

The Group has been successfully listed on the GEM on 12 July 2018
(the “Listing Date") and incurred listing expenses of approximately
HK$13.05 million in 2018, which is the main reason for the net profit
decline in 2018 when comparing with 2017. After excluding this
listing expenses, the net profit of the Group would be approximately
HK$5.94 million, representing a decrease of 32.3% compared with
2017. The decrease was primarily due to the increase of compliance
expenses due to listing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$7.66
million or approximately 4.4% from approximately HK$174.82
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$182.48 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to increase of sales demand of
ODM watches during 2018.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales was consistent with the revenue increased by
approximately HK$4.05 million or 3.3% from approximately
HK$123.80 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$127.85 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by approximately HK$3.61 million or
approximately 7.1% from approximately HK$51.02 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$54.63 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 which is in line with the
increase in the Company’s revenue. Our overall gross profit margin
also increased from approximately 29.2% for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately 29.9% for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
order for higher gross profit margin watch products from our
customers.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
HK$0.34 million or approximately 5.3% from approximately HK$6.33
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$5.99 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in commission related to our sales to
European customers.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$6.44
million or approximately 20.3% from approximately HK$31.64
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$38.08 million for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in audit and other
professional expenses for compliance purpose.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmE DM

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.57 million or
approximately 12.2% from approximately HK$4.71 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$4.14 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in bank borrowings.

Listing expenses

The Group incurred approximately HK$13.05 million listing expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2018 while the listing expenses
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$4.83 million.

Loss/profit before taxation

We recorded a loss before taxation of approximately HK$4.50 million
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as against a profit before
taxation of approximately HK$6.02 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The decrease was mainly attributable to the listing
expenses incurred during 2018.

Taxation

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately HK$0.54 million
or approximately 26.6% from approximately HK$2.06 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$2.60 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in taxable profit of a Hong Kong subsidiary.

Loss/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, we recorded a loss for the year of
approximately HK$7.10 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 against a profit for the year of approximately HK$3.96 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmR DM

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

2019 will be a challenging year. The turmoil due to the Sino-US trade
war will continue to impact the global economy. The Group aimed
to offer better quality watch products to our customers at affordable
price and will continue to strengthen our design capabilities by
recruiting more design talents and upgrading their hardware and
software for their design work. The Group will closely observe the
market trend and provide designs that suit the customer and market
needs.

In view of the growing middle-class among the emerging market, the
Group is gradually shifting its product focus from quartz watch to
automatic mechanical watch. In order to cope with this change, the
Group will source more automatic mechanical movement suppliers
and secure the supply across the globe.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company'’s shares were successfully listed on the GEM on 12 July
2018. There has been no change in the Company’s capital structure
since 12 July 2018. The capital structure of the Group comprises of
issued share capital and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s
capital structure regularly.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$40.33 million (2017: HK$9.43 million). The
current ratios (current asset divided by current liabilities) of the Group
were 1.22 times and 1.02 times as at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2017 respectively.

The Directors are of the view that at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and
operations.

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group calculated
by total bank borrowings as a percentage of total equity was
approximately 99.4%. (2017: 331.0%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DM

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitments.

The Group leases our production facilities and staff dormitories in
the PRC and directors’ quarter in Hong Kong under operating lease.
As at 31 December 2018, our Group’s operating lease commitment
as a lessee amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million (2017:
approximately HK$1.6 million).

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged
to bank to secure the Group’s banking facilities:

AE
HZE2018F12A31H  KAEBEW BT
B IEIE o

AEBRBCEHERAEFENEERE
NETIBEUREENESRES - 20184F
128318 AEBEEAEHEANKCEEE
AEARB21BEBBITQR07E Y168
BB °

rEEEEAT
REEHR - THEERRTRITIEAR
EERTHENER :

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment Wz - B R& 24,231
Other financial assets EthemEE 17,024
Investment properties REYE 14,800
Pledged bank deposits EEARITER 21,701
77,756

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s purchases are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.
The sales of the Group are predominantly in United States Dollars,
Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollars. The Group will review and monitor
from time to time the risk relating to foreign exchanges.

During 2018, the Group neither took part in any derivatives activities
nor entered into any hedging activities in respect of foreign exchange
risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DN

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, we had a total of 178 employees. The
Company determines employee salaries based on each employee’s
qualifications, position and seniority. Our Group has established an
annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises,
bonuses and promotions.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after
recommendation from the remuneration committee of the Company,
having considered the factors such as the Group’s financial
performance, the achievement of special targets and the individual
performance of the Directors, etc.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had no
significant events occurred.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERENWE DT

USE OF PROCEEDS

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, the
Group has applied the net proceeds as follows:

FRERERZ

B EFHTHEEZ2018F12A31H &

B RS FIRFEAT

Amount
utilized up to
31 December

Amount

unutilized up to

31 December

Allocation 2018 2018
HZE2018F HZ2018F
12A31H 12A31H
2EE CHRANSE XADANESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FHAT
Acquisition of new production 8 B ¥74 E 5%
facilities 21,629 - 21,629
Expansion of e-commerce BREFEBEPE
customer base 2,739 - 2,739
Strengthening of design ISR ERETEE )
capabilities 2,200 - 2,200
Repayment of bank loan BREBFITER 7,422 7,422 -
Working capital LEES 480 120 360
Total #st 34,470 7,542 26,928

As at 31 December 2018 and as at the date of this annual report, the
balance of net proceeds from the Listing are deposited in licensed

banks in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWR DN

COMPARISON BETWEEN BUSINESS OBJECTIVES ¥ BEREHEBERXEKERZLEE

AND ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

The following is a comparison between the Group’s business plans as ARFEH ﬁﬂﬁ201§¢6 A28RZMEER
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 June 2018 (the (TRRER]) EURRE BRI EEE

“Prospectus”) and the Group’s actual business progress for the year 20‘1\8¢ 123 31 BUEFEZASREERE
ended 31 December 2018: BERZ BT ¢

Business plan for the Year
as set out in the Prospectus Actual business progress as at 31 December 2018

EREEMBAFEELE A2018E 12 31 B2 EREBER

Repayment of bank loan During the year, the Group has used HK$7.4 million to repay bank loan, the
EERITER finance costs decreased by approximately HK$0.57 million or approximately

12.2% from approximately HK$4.71 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately HK$4.14 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

FR - AEEPR7A4EEBTEERITER  UBEKAHBE20174128
BNBIEFEN4TIAEB TR 057 BEBITHA12.2% ZEE 2018
FNRANALFENIIABELT -

Expansion of e-commerce customer The Group will hire new graphic designers, product engineers, R&D staff and
base marketing staff. The Group will purchase of hardware & software for new staff
BAEFEBEPE in 2019 and 2020 to expand of e-commerce customer base.
AEBESEBNOTERR - ER IR HRABREEAS  TEA
2019 F R 2020 FMB TR BRI NBAETRBELE -

Strengthening of design capabilities The Group will purchase of a new metal 3D printer in 2019 to strengthen of
IS G design capabilities
AEESR2019FREFNNSE =BT MNEERTEEN -

Acquisition of new production The Group will acquire a new factory in 2019.
facilities KEBER2019FBEENKRE -
BEHLEERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRR DM

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

From the Listing Date to 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save as the corporate reorganisation as disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 28 June 2018 (the “Prospectus”), there
was no significant investment, material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual report, the
Group did not have other plans for material investments or capital
assets for the coming year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholder(s)") by way of written resolutions
passed on 20 June 2018. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the date it
was adopted. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to our
Group and/or to enable our Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to our
Group and any entity in which our Group holds any equity interest
("Invested Entity").
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
Director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity; (b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of our Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of our Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of our Group
or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to our Group or any
Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of our Group
or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of our Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or
business development of our Group or any Invested Entity; and (h)
any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute, by way of joint venture, business alliance, other
business arrangement or otherwise, to the development and growth
of our Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Share(s)”) may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, which was 100,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) from time to
time.
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The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of Share in issue for the
time being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the
Company with such participant and his/her close associates (or his
associates if such Participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting. An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 21 days from the date of grant
together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof. An option may be exercised during such period
as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. Unless
the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a grantee,
a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised. The subscription
price for the Shares on the exercise of the option shall be determined
at the discretion of the Board which shall not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.

Please refer to paragraph headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix V of the Prospectus for more details of the Share Option
Scheme. No share option has been granted by the Company pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling Shareholder nor their respective
associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) that competed or
might compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict
of interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual declaration
to the Company that since the Listing Date and up to 31 December
2018, he/she/it has complied with the terms of non-competition
undertakings (“Non-Competition Undertakings”) given in favour
of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors have
also reviewed the status of compliance by each of the controlling
Shareholders with the undertakings stipulated in the Non-
Competition Undertakings and have confirmed that, as far as the
independent non-executive Directors can ascertain, there is no breach
of any of such undertaking.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2018, except for (i) the participation of by TC
Capital International Limited (“TC Capital”) as the sponsor in relation
to the listing of the Company on GEM; and (i) the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and TC Capital
dated 23 February 2018, neither TC Capital nor any of its directors,
employees or close associates had any interest in the securities of the
Company or any member of the Group (including options or rights
to subscribe for such securities, if any) pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND
The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to 31 December
2018, except for the deviation as specified and explained below with
considered reasons for such deviations.

Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheuk Sin
Cheong Clement is currently the chairman of our Board and the
chief executive officer of our Company. In view that Mr. Cheuk has
been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in operating and managing
our Group since 1986 and the rapid development of our Group,
the Board believes that with the support of Mr. Cheuk’s extensive
experience and knowledge in the business of the Group, vesting
the roles of both chairman of our Board and chief executive officer
of our Company in Mr. Cheuk strengthens the solid and consistent
leadership and thereby allows for efficient business planning and
decision which is in the best interest to our Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for our Group’s operations, and
sufficient checks and balances are in place.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms
that the Directors complied with required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors from
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018.
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The shares of the Company has been listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2018 (the “Listing Date”). The Company has
adopted the principles and the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules.

During the period from the Listing Date and 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company had complied with
the CG Code, except where otherwise stated.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirms
that the Directors complied with required standard of dealings and its
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors from
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is primarily responsible for overall business
plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation of the Group’s
policies and strategies, monitoring the business performance,
internal controls and risk management as well as supervising the
management of the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and
operation of the Group to the management. The delegated functions
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the
needs of the Group.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, including three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)
Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. Zhao Zhipeng

Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy

Biographical details of each Director and relationship between board
members are set out on page 32 to page 38 of this annual report.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment but as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire will (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
board diversity policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is currently the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive officer of the Company, responsible
for formulating the overall business development strategy and
planning of the Group. In view that Mr. Cheuk has been responsible
for the overall management of the Group since its inception, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Cheuk taking up both roles for effective management and business
development.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of the other executive director and independent non-
executive Directors.

Further, the Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advisers
when it considers necessary. Therefore, the Directors consider
that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises five
other experienced and high-calibre individuals including two other
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors
who would be able to offer advice from various perspectives. In
addition, for major decisions of the Group, the Company will
consult appropriate Board committees and senior management.
Considering the present size and the scope of business of the Group,
we consider that it is not in the best interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole to separate the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer, because the separation would render
the decision-making process of the Company less efficient than the
current structure. Therefore, the Directors consider that the present
arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of the Company and
the shareholders as a whole and the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific terms of three
years and is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the paragraph C.3 and D.3 of CG Code. The Audit Committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H., Mr. Zhao Zhipeng and Ms. Yee Wai Fong
Wendy. Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, to oversee the audit process, to perform the corporate
governance function and other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussing auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of annual results
and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director namely Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Zhipeng and Mr. Yu Sau Ning
Homer M.H.. Mr. Zhao Zhipeng is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, The primary duties of the remuneration committee
include (but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Directors on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director namely
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer M.H. and Ms. Yee Wai
Fong Wendy. Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The primary function of the Nomination
Committee is to, inter alia, make recommendations to the Board to
fill vacancies on the same. The secretary of the Company shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for consideration by the Nomination
Committee.
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The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors which would
be used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, reputation for integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as Board member, diversity of the Board, and
such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular Board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board papers
of the regular meeting are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share
their views at the meeting. Minutes of all Board and committee
meetings are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by
the Directors.

The Articles contains provisions requiring the Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in
which such Directors or any of their close associates have a material
interest.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee
meetings of the Company held during the period from the Listing
Date and up to 31 December 2018 is set out in the table below:

EEHELEREEENE

SEEEHEART B LTHHERES
20184 12 A3 HEAMBITMNESE S -
EnEZEg REZESkFTWEESS
FRLEEIIN TR

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting

EXEed ENZEE0E REAZEC0E FMEEEER

Board
Name of Directors Meeting
BExps
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement 8&Z& %4 212
Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. Bi&# &%+ MH. 212
Ms. Cheuk Heide Oil-gei =EoR: Jogun 212
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Yu Sau Ning Homer MH.  REE L4 MH. 12
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng AL A 212
Ms. Yee Wai Fong Wendy REFLL 212

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018, no general
meeting was held.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

N/A T8 A - N/A 33 A
N/A 3 A N/A i A N/AiE A
N/ATiE N/AiE -/~
12 -/~ /-
212 N/A i F -
212 /- N/ATiE A
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with accounting principles and applied them consistently.
A statement by the auditors of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditors’
report contained in this annual report. The Directors adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 under Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. For the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors and a
majority of the senior management of the Group received induction
trainings from the Company’s Hong Kong legal adviser in respect
of the ongoing obligations, duties and responsibilities of Directors
of publicly listed companies in Hong Kong under the Companies
Ordinance, the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Xie Xing is the company secretary of the Company. Please refer to
the section headed "Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for the biographical details of the
company secretary of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Xie has undertaken not

less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as its
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2018. The analysis of the
auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out as follow:

¥ B B i A
AAFIEZERGSMELAERA A
BEEHEEZ2018F 12 A3 HILFEMNZ
HEh - B E2018F 12 A31BIEFE 2 #
HENFHB AT T

Amount of

Type of services provided by external auditors fees
SN IR BT R AR IS E A
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services EZRE 1,000
Non-audit service EEZRE -
Total Bt 1,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The
Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review
the Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision C.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee reviewed the
internal control review report issued by the external independent
consultant on the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 and
considered that they are effective and adequate. The Board assessed
the effectiveness of internal control systems by considering the
internal control review report and reviews performed by the Audit
Committee and concurred the same.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") and the GEM Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the Safe Harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the
public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have been
breached, the Group would immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that information
contained in announcements are not false or misleading as to a
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests of the
shareholder of the Company and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall also take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term

growth aspect of the business;

5. the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings shall at all time have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, the Company has established
several channels to communicate with the shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange
at www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.hanveygroup.com.hk;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iiiy corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv) annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management.
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The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and
the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by
post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

To comply with the GEM Listing Rules, the Company conditionally
adopted the amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company on 20 June 2018 and it took effect on
the Listing Date. A copy of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.hanveygroup.com.hk. During the period from the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018, there has been no change
in the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

EENEREERNBEERE

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement (£ Z &), aged 60, is the
chairman of our Board, our founder, our executive Director, one of
our controlling Shareholders and our chief executive officer. He is also
the chairperson of our nomination committee. He is a director of each
of the operating subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Cheuk is primarily
responsible for formulating our Group’s overall management of our
Group's business.

Mr. Cheuk has more than 30 years of experience in the watch
industry, particularly in product design development, sales and
marketing. He was the vice chairman of the 17th session of and
chairman of the 18th session of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades & Industries Limited and an advisor of The Federation of Hong
Kong Watch Trades & Industries Limited since 2000. He was also a
member of Watches and Clocks Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council from 1996 to 2007.

Mr. Cheuk obtained a master's degree of business administration
(executive) from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001.
He was admitted as an honorary fellow of the Professional Validation
Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in June 2015. He was also
awarded the Young Industrialist Awards for the year 1998/1999 by
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and an awardee member
of the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council in November 1998.
Mr. Cheuk was also a director of the 32nd board of directors of Yan
Oi Tong.

He is the spouse of Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H., father of Ms.
Cheuk Heide QOil-gei and brother-in-law of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.
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Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. (“Mrs. Cheuk”) (B#F %), aged
58, is our executive Director, one of our controlling Shareholders
and the legal representative of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company
Limited. She is also a director of each of the operating subsidiaries
of our Group. She is primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
administrative, human resources and financial management, and
assisting in the management of our Group’s business.

Mrs. Cheuk has more than 29 years of experience in the watch
industry. Prior to joining our Group, she worked in the finance
department in China Resources Textiles Company Limited from July
1978 to January 1985 and worked as a deputy financial manager in
China Resources Silk Co., Ltd from January 1985 to November 1987.

Mrs. Cheuk was awarded the China’s Hundred Outstanding Women
Entrepreneurs* (B & & £ Z B2 K) by the China Association
of Woman Entrepreneurs* (A B Z2 (& % R 1% &) in October 2006
and was awarded the Medal of Honour (MH) by the Government of
the HKSAR in July 2010. She was a director, the vice chairlady and
the chairlady of Yan Oi Tong from 2004 to 2006, 2006 to 2009 and
2009 to 2010 respectively. She was a committee member of the
tenth Hubei Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference* (R EI A RBUAHE g2 M4 £+
JEZ 8& % 8). She is currently a permanent honorary committee
member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong Kong
and a director of Po Leung Kuk.

Mrs. Cheuk obtained a diploma of graduate gemologist from the
Gemological Institute of America in March 2003. Mrs. Cheuk is the
spouse of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement, mother of Ms. Cheuk
Heide Qil-gei and sister of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.
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Ms. CHEUK Heide Oil-gei (= 8l %), aged 30, is our executive
Director and in-house legal counsel. She is currently responsible
for overseeing the sales and marketing and business development,
management of our Group’s business, and advising on legal matters.

Ms. Cheuk has 6 years of experience in the watch industry. Prior
to joining our Group, she worked as a legal intern and paralegal at
Vidler & Co. Solicitors from August 2010 to May 2011 and as a solar
campaign associate at Environment California from August 2012 to
October 2012.

Ms. Cheuk obtained a degree of bachelor of Laws from the University
of Durham in July 2010 and a degree of master of laws from the Duke
University in May 2012. She was admitted to practice as an attorney
and counsellor at law in all courts of the State of New York in June
2017.

Ms. Cheuk is the daughter of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong Clement and
Mrs. Cheuk and the niece of Ms. Au Hung Wai Didy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H. (= &), aged 66, is our
independent non-executive Director, the chairperson of our audit
committee, and a member of our remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Yu is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, remuneration
committee, audit committee and nomination committee.

Mr. Yu has 41 years of experience in the wholesale and retail markets
of wine and spirit, skincare and household products. He has been
the chief executive officer of Cheong Hing Store Ltd., Cheong Hing
(1917) Limited, Youthful Technology International Ltd. and Youthful
Wonder Limited since 1981, 1981, 1989 and 2014 respectively. In
June 2016, he founded and became the director of One Belt One
Road Eurasia Centre (HK) Limited.
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Mr. Yu was awarded the Chevalier de |'ordre national du Merite
by the Government of France in June 1996 and was awarded the
medal of honour by the Government of the HKSAR in 1999. He
was appointed as a member of the eleventh and twelfth National
People’s Congress HKSAR Representative Elective Committee and
was appointed as a committee member of the first Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Huangpu, Guangzhou in
August 2015. He was also appointed as a member by the Consumer
Council for the period between 2003 and 2008. In December 2008,
he received the honorary decoration award from the Chamber of
Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce. He is currently a member of the Customer Consultative
Group of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, and an elected member
of the retailer category of Quality Tourism Services Association
Governing Council (QTSA) and the chairman of the Better Business
Environment Committee of QTSA. He has been the chairman of
the seventh Professional’s Committee of Kowloon Federation of
Association since June 2015. He has been an honorary life president
of the Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd. since
1996.

Mr. Yu obtained a degree of master of science from the National
University of Ireland in April 2003. He was admitted as honorary
senior fellow by the Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong
Business Sector (PVCBS) in November 2005, and was the president of
the 6th session of the executive committee of PVCBS.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (# & ), aged 35, is our independent non-
executive Director, the chairperson of our remuneration committee,
and a member of our audit committee. Mr. Zhao is responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to our Board, audit
committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Zhao has more than six years of experience in the legal industry.
Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a trainee solicitor at Patrick
Mak & Tse from July 2011 to December 2013 and as an assistant
solicitor in the same firm from December 2013 to March 2016.
He became a partner of the said firm since 2016. He has been an
independent non-executive director of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1722), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, since November 2017.
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Mr. Zhao obtained a degree of bachelor of laws from The East
China University of Political Science and Law in July 2006, a degree
of master of laws from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
December 2007, a juris doctor degree from the City University of
Hong Kong in October 2009 and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from the City University of Hong Kong in July 2011. He was admitted
to practice law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in December 2013.

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy (5R23), aged 53, is our independent
non-executive Director and a member of our audit committee
and nomination committee. She is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to our Board, audit committee and
nomination committee.

Ms. Yee has more than 26 years of experience in finance and
accounting areas in the Asia Pacific. Prior to joining our Group,
she was a senior auditor of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from July
1988 to April 1993. From July 1993 to November 2006 she has
served a number of positions in the Motorola Asia Pacific Limited,
a multinational telecommunications company listed in the United
States, with her last position as a controller for Hong Kong, the
Philippines and the business development team of its networks and
enterprise business. From December 2006 to April 2010 she has
served a number of position in Ecolab Limited, a subsidiary of Ecolab
Inc., a company listed in the United States, with her last position as
Asia control director. From May 2010 to July 2012 she served as a
vice president of finance in Active-Semi International, Inc. From July
2012 to June 2013, she worked as a senior director of finance and
accounting, Asia, at Mikli Asia Limited. She then served as a director
of finance from April 2014 to June 2017 at Targus Asia Pacific
Limited.

Ms. Yee obtained a degree of bachelor of social sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1988 and a degree of bachelor
of science from the University of London in August 2002. She further
obtained a degree of master of business administration from the
University of Dubuque in December 2002. She has been admitted
as a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales in February 2006, and as an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April 1992.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. XIE Xing (# £), aged 38, is our chief financial officer and
company secretary. He is responsible for overseeing our financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control and company
secretarial matters.

Mr. Xie has more than 12 years of experience in the accounting and
financial field. Prior to joining our Group, he worked at KPMG from
July 2006 to February 2008, with his last position as an accountant.
Subsequently, he worked as a financial and planning manager at
Garona (HK) Limited from February 2008 to November 2008, as an
accountant at Mapletree Logistics Management (HK) Limited from
May 2009 to June 2010, as a business and finance manager at
Vantage Sourced Limited from June 2010 to December 2012 and as
a senior financial analyst at 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited from
December 2011 to January 2014. In July 2014, he co-founded and
became a director of Makeup Gallery Limited. From July 2015 to
April 2017, he worked as a financial analyst at Metito China Holdings
Limited. He rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited as the chief
financial officer in May 2017.

He obtained a degree of bachelor of science with honour in applied
physics from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003
and a degree of master of philosophy in physics from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in November 2005. He has been
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2011.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Wai (# 2 &), aged 37, is our senior sales and
marketing manager. He is responsible for overseeing the sales and
marketing of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has more than 14 years of experience in the watch
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Yeung worked as
merchandiser at Watch Logistic International Limited from March
2004 to April 2008.

Mr. Yeung completed the professional diploma in purchasing and
merchandising management at The Hong Kong Management
Association in December 2004. He obtained a degree of bachelor of
business administration in marketing from The Open University of
Hong Kong in November 2012.
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Mr. LAU Yue Man (2] & 32), aged 49, is our general manager
and a director of Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company Limited. He is
responsible for overseeing daily operation of our PRC production
plant, and resolving production and products issues.

Mr. Lau has over 24 years of experience in management. Prior to
joining our Group, he worked as a general manager in Golden Island
Watch Industrial (Shenzhen) Limited* (£ &8k % CEI) AR A 7))
from June 1994 to December 1996, as a general manager in Han Lin
Metal Products Manufactory Limited* (£ & B & MM AR A7)
from January 1997 to April 2002, and as a technical director in Sutec
(H.K.) Limited from August 2002 to January 2014.

Ms. AU Hung Wai Didy (& 4L £), aged 52, is our vice general
manager. She is responsible for overseeing research and development
and procurement department.

Ms. Au has more than 31 years of experience in the watch industry.
She joined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in October 1986 as a
quality controller and was promoted to purchase clerk in September
1988. She left 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in June 1996 and
rejoined 3 Wells Watch Industries Limited in January 1997 as a
purchase and research and development manager, and she is
currently the vice general manager (China operation).

She is the sister of Mrs. Cheuk, sister-in-law of Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong
Clement and aunt of Ms. Cheuk Heide Qil-gei.

Mr. CHAN Ho Tsun (BR¥%£), aged 32, is our quality & production
manager. He is responsible for overseeing production control and
quality compliance.

Mr. Chan has over 8 years of experience in quality control field of
watch industry. He joined our Group as a quality manager for our PRC
factory in April 2015. Prior to joining our Group, he worked as a TQM
manager in Afair International Limited from October 2012 to April
2015.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor degree in engineering in
manufacturing systems engineering in the City University of Hong
Kong in September 2012. He is currently a provisional internal auditor
registered under the International Register of Certificated Auditors.
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EEEWRE

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in design and development, manufacturing
and distribution of watch products on original design manufacturing
("ODM") basis for watch manufacturers, brand owners and watch
importers across the globe.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the financial positions of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on
pages 70 to 183 of this annual report.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 184 in the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue attributable
to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
28.6% (2017: 29.4%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 58.6% (2017: 60.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
9.6% (2017: 13.0%) of the Group’s total cost of services and
materials sold incurred and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 39.5%
(2017: 40.8%) of the Group’s total cost of services and materials sold
incurred.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors
own 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in any the Group’s major customers or suppliers
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 74 and in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had retained profit amounted
to approximately HK$24.23 million available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions of our Group as set out below are exempt
from compliance with the requirements of reporting, annual review,
announcement and approval by the independent Shareholders under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Office Tenancy Agreement

Smart Hill Enterprises Limited (“Smart Hill”) (as tenant) entered into
a tenancy agreement (the “Office Tenancy Agreement”) dated
1 July 2017 with Cheer China Group Holdings Limited (“Cheer
China") (as landlord), pursuant to which Cheer China agreed to lease
Unit 6 on 15th Floor, Tower One, Ever Gain Plaza, No. 88 Container
Port Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong to Smart Hill
for the purpose as office for a term of two years commencing on 1
July 2017 and ending on 30 June 2019 (both days inclusive) at the
monthly rent of HK$15,000 (inclusive of property tax, management
fee, government rent and rates but exclusive of water, gas and
electricity charges), which was agreed after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties with regard to the market rent of similar
properties in similar locations as the property leased under the Office
Tenancy Agreement, and the terms of the Office Tenancy Agreement
were no less favourable to Cheer China than terms available from
independent third parties.

The rent paid by Smart Hill for the two years ended 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately HK$0.2 million and HK$0.2 million,
respectively. It is expected that the annual rent payable by Smart Hill
under the Office Tenancy Agreement for the two years ending 31
December 2019 will amount to approximately HK$0.2 million and
HK$0.2 million respectively.

By using the above expected annual rent as the numerators for the
calculation of percentage ratios, all the relevant percentage ratios
calculated for the relevant transactions under the Office Tenancy
Agreement pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules will
be less than 5% and the annual consideration will be less than
HK$3,000,000.

Annual Report 2018

BrEER
RARZ B IRMAI KA S B (BIAA
AL 2 FARER) AP R AR
AARRERE 2 ERLFIRENR 2 E
S EEME -

BEXZ

1R GEM LTTHRBIZE 20% - TXAT#EAL
B2 HERE R S ER R YT GEM £
RIZ20ZETMHE FEEH 25K
WL AR R IR o

WMAZEHEDR
ZRMGEERAB((EE]) ERMEP) R
BESEERER AR ([BE) EAE
F)EIMHEA2017F7 A1 BONHEER S
(MAZEHREHR]) - Bt BEREK
BB SR S B TE P IR 88 SR Ak B H E 15
F— 156 =L A 15,0008 T (B1E
WER - ERE MHEREHR ETEE
KREE) HATEMERARR 52017
F7H1H#EE2019F6 A30B L (BHEE
EMAB) BHME - 2 EMRIERIOH
AP AZTHE S N AEHYERAUME 2
RUDEOTRETATFERBER B
RANEHEREOEREREMNS TER
BB FTIREE -

HZ2018F 12 A3 1B It MEFE 24
THAMEESH N AE02EESITR02E
BET EHEARERAZHEREM
HZE 2019412 A31 B 1- 1 18 4F Z Ry
FHEIRNEB2AEBLR2EES
5T o

B EAEGFRERES FUAERD
o - iRIBGEM LR RIZE 205 » B
=ZHEWBRR TERRX S ENMEHEH
BOHERFERS% - M FEREER
3,000,000 % 7T ©

41



Report of Directors

EEEWE

Smart Hill is a company incorporated in Hong Kong which is wholly-
owned by Ms. Au Sin Mei Stella, the sister of Ms. Au Corona Ching
Mei M.H. (the executive Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company). As such, Smart Hill is an associate of Ms. Au Corona
Ching Mei M.H. and hence a connected person of the Company for
the purposes of the GEM Listing Rules and the transactions under
the Office Tenancy Agreement will constitute exempt continuing
connected transactions for our Group.

3 Wells Watch Industries Limited (“3 Wells") (as tenant) entered
into a tenancy agreement (the “Director’s Quarter Tenancy
Agreement”) dated 1 July 2017 with Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong
Clement (“Mr. Cheuk”) (as landlord), pursuant to which Mr. Cheuk
agreed to lease House No. 15 of Mouton Avenue, The Vineyard, No.
23 Ngau Tam Mei Road, Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong to
3 Wells for the purpose as Director’s quarter for a term of two years
commencing on 1 July 2017 and ending on 30 June 2019 (both days
inclusive) at the monthly rent of HK$60,000 (inclusive of property
tax, government rent and rates but exclusive of management fee,
water, gas and electricity charges), which was agreed after arm’s
length negotiations between the parties with regard to the market
rent of similar properties in similar locations as the property leased
under the Director’s Quarter Tenancy Agreement, and the terms of
the Director’s Quarter Tenancy Agreement were no less favourable to
3 Wells than terms available from independent third parties.

The rent paid by 3 Wells under the Director’s Quarter Tenancy
Agreement for each of two years ending 31 December 2018 amount
to approximately HK$0.4 million and HK$0.7 million respectively.

By using the above expected annual rent as the numerators for the
calculation of percentage ratios, all the relevant percentage ratios
calculated for the relevant transactions under the Director’s Quarter
Tenancy Agreement pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
will be less than 5% and the annual consideration will be less than
HK$3,000,000.

Mr. Cheuk is the executive Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company. As such, Mr. Cheuk is a connected person of the Company
for the purposes of the GEM Listing Rules and the transactions under
the Director’s Quarter Tenancy Agreement will constitute exempt
continuing connected transactions for our Group.
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Pursuant to Rule 20.53 of the GEM Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

e in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

° on normal commercial terms or better; and

e inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

For further details of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected transactions” in the
Prospectus.

Pursuant to Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has confirmed to the Board in writing that for the year

ended 31 December 2018, the continuing connected transactions,

which:

e have been approved by the Board;

e were, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of

goods or services by the Group;

e were entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

e have not exceeded the cap.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, none of these related party transactions constitutes
connected transactions that need to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year ended 31 December
2018 and analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and prospectus of the Group’s business are
provided in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on page 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 19 of the
annual report and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting sustainability both in
term of business development and impact to the environment.
The Group has complied with all the relevant environmental
protection law and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group’s business where the Group is operating. The Group
will review its environmental practices from time to time and will
consider implementing further measures and practices to enhance
sustainability whenever appropriate and possible.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 56 to 62
of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, there has been
no violation or breach of relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Company.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and
growth opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees
remuneration packages that are comprehensive and attractive.
Some employees are granted options under the Company’s share
option scheme in recognition of their contribution. We also value
our employee’s physical and mental development. Diverse events
and activities are organised for the employees for fostering work-life
balance and personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and
services to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and
suggestions of our customers and have always maintained effective
communications with the customers. We will continue to reach
out for current and prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-
site visits and major customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that
customers’ feedback would help us to identify areas of improvement
and advance us to achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the
Group’s business performance and growth because suppliers can
have direct influence over the quality of the products and services
and customer satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for
Suppliers” in respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality
testing methods and comprehensive appraisal and evaluation
system on potential and existing suppliers and their products and
performance. We are committed to establishing a close and long-
term cooperation relationship with business partners.
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Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

We operate in a highly competitive environment and we
cannot assure you that we will be able to grow or sustain our
competitiveness

Watch manufacturing in the PRC is highly competitive and
fragmented with over 1,000 players. The pricing of and demand for
our watches are significantly affected by the intensity of competition
we face. Our competitors may have substantially greater financial and
technological resources, design and manufacturing capacities and
stronger customer and supplier relationships than we do. As a result,
we cannot assure you that we may be able to compete effectively
with these competitors and the competitive pressures could adversely
affect our business and financial condition and results of operations.

Changes in existing laws and regulations and the imposition of
new laws, regulations, restrictions and any other entry barriers
in relation to our industry may increase our costs

We are subject to compliance with various laws and regulations
relating to the production and sales of watches in the jurisdictions in
which we operate. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may result in imposition of conditions on or the suspension of sale or
seizure of our products, or significant penalties or claims. In the event
that the countries in which we operate increase the stringency of
such laws and regulations, our operating costs may increase and we
may not be able to pass these additional costs onto our customers.
Further, in the event that any jurisdiction in which we operate or plan
to operate impose any new laws, regulations, restrictions or other
barriers to entry, our ability to expand may be limited and our growth
and development may be adversely affected.
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We operate our production facility in the PRC. A substantial part
of parts and components are sourced from various suppliers who
are mostly Hong Kong companies with production facilities in the
PRC. Accordingly, the business, results of operations and financial
condition as well as prospects of our Group are subject, to a
significant degree, to the economic, political and legal developments
in the PRC.

Political and economic policies of the PRC Government may
affect our business and results of operations and may result in
our inability to sustain our growth and expansion strategies
The PRC economy has largely been a centrally planned economy,
which differs from other developed economies of the world in many
respects, including:

e  the degree of the PRC Government’s involvement;

e the growth rate and degree of development;

e the uniformity in implementation and enforcement of laws;
e the content of and control over capital investment;

e the control of foreign exchange; and

e the allocation of resources.

The PRC economy has been transitioning from a centrally planned
economy to a more market-oriented economy. For approximately
three decades, the PRC Government has implemented economic
reform measures to utilise market forces in the development of the
PRC economy. The PRC economy has grown significantly in recent
decades, though we cannot assure you that this growth will continue
or continue at the same pace.

In addition, the PRC Government continues to play a significant role
in regulating industries and the economy through policy measured.
As such, we cannot assure you that we will not be adversely affected
by the measures that are under continuous adjustments. Also, the
PRC Government has implemented various measures to guide the
allocation of resources. Some of these measures may benefit the
overall economy of the PRC, but may also have a negative impact on
the watch industry or on us. For example, our financial results may be
adversely affected by government control over capital investments or
changes in tax regulations that are applicable to us.
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Financial risks
Details of financial risks are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company (the “Board”) during the year and up

to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement (Chairman)
Ms. AU Corona Ching Mei M.H.

Ms. CHEUK Heide Oil-gei

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Sau Ning Homer M.H.

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng

Ms. YEE Wai Fong Wendy

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. AU Corona Ching Mei M.H. and Ms. CHEUK Heide
Oil-gei will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
There is no change in the information of Directors, which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules
from the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 32 to 38 of the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions and connected transactions
disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2018.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance that is significant to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a person who at any time was a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 164 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the
time being of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for
the time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and everyone of them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the
other or others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake
of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any
security upon which any moneys of or belonging to the Company
shall be placed out on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may happen in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto; provided that this indemnity shall not
extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons. Such provision was in force during the
year ended 31 December 2018. In addition, the Company has also
maintained Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2018, which provides appropriate cover for the
directors and officers of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures or any associated corporation” below, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2018 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company
or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OR
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company:

EERBEETHRAERRND -
RGO RESHNERXBHE
IS E

MN2018F 12 A31H BEERARAES
TTRRABRA R A s T EE (T
REENMEEED ((EERIPEEN])E
XVER) 2 B - R D REETHEE A
BEEFRBERIEXNVIHETIRESD
HMEeARAR MBS AR (BT
BIEEFRIEENE BIEXEEREE
PR BB 2R IAR) R BRARR
AIREESF M ERNEIRGETE Y
Btz RS EAR - KRB GEM LR
BIZE5.46 ZE5.68 1B AR A LB
FTziEm AR IAT

RARRBIRG VLA -
Long position

"R

Percentage of

Number of total number

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares

MR EE

EEng B, ERHE EBREE Bok

Mr. Cheuk Sin Cheong, Clement Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%

("Mr. Cheuk”) (Note)

sEBRE(EERE]D (Hit) AR HEE S 750,000,000 fi% 75%

Ms. Au Corona Ching Mei M.H. Interest in controlled corporation 750,000,000 75%
("Mrs. Cheuk") (Note)

BiEFEz+ MH. ([EAK]) REHEE R 750,000,000 fi% 75%

(K1)

Note: 750,000,000 shares of the Company are registered in the name of Million
Easy Enterprises Ltd. (“Million Easy”), the entire issued share capital of
which are legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk in
equal shares. Under the SFO, both Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk are deemed
to be interest in all the shares of the Company held by Million Easy.
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Long position in the ordinary shares of associated corporation:

RAEHE A B BB AR

Long position

"R

Name of Capacity/ Number of  Percentage of

associated Nature of ordinary total number

Name of Director corporation Interest shares of shares

54/ RGO EE

E=pE HEEEER ERME ZEREE Bk

Mr. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
sEE B8H B

Mrs. Cheuk Million Easy Beneficial Interest 1 50%
BEARK BE ExmiEs

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
As at 31 December 2018, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons/entities have an
interest or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares of the Company:

FERRRARAR 2R REE
BRONERR HKXR

M2018%12A31H - @%%&ﬁ
BITBRABSN  THAL EER ﬂ
Hxﬁjﬁﬁﬁaﬁxfﬁq:‘%’Eﬁﬁ?}?mﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬂm
B2 336 1§78 R0 8 AN A A B) 2 Re i P Y 4
AR

RARBIRMD AR

Long position

wR
Percentage of
Number of total number
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest ordinary shares of shares
R EE
=1 B REEUE EBRREA B
Million Easy Beneficial Interest 750,000,000 75%
B8E oo 750,000,000 % 75%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than a Director) who
had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short position
in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018. The Company had not redeemed any of its listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS
None of the Directors, the management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its respective associates has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules, or has any other conflict of interests with the
Group during year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 20 to 31 of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under
the GEM Listing Rules since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re- appoint HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Mr. CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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RIR -8 RERBRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report
of Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). With the growing consciousness and
importance of sustainability, the Group takes this opportunity to
scrutinise management practices that are material to stakeholders,
for example, environmental protection, product quality and employee
care.

This report is prepared in with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The report aims to
improve stakeholders’ understanding and to introduce ongoing
sustainability initiatives directed towards the fulfilment of our
obligations to society and the environment in which we operate.

Covering the Company’s fiscal year from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018, quantitative environmental data in this report covers
our office-based operations in Hong Kong and the workshop-based
operations in China, while the social and environmental narrative
includes operations in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

ENVIRONMENT

The Company, being one of the major watch manufacturers in Hong
Kong, is committed to promoting sustainability both in terms of
business development and impact to the environment. We embrace
principles and practices that help minimise our carbon footprint,
energy consumption and climate change impacts.

The factory of the Group in Shenzhen is regulated by “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” (& ## A R £
ME R R L), "Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the Peoples Republic of China” {(FZE AR £ B =
Y15 2 IRE N )R JA), “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the
People’s Republic of China” {HFZE A R 1 E1EZ 4 E (2 #)% Yand
“ Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China” (2 A R EFE AR5 /A%E), and other
environmental protection regulatory standards issued by the central
and local governments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance of the PRC environmental protection
laws and regulations.

Emissions

Air pollutants emissions

Consumption of petrol in 1 private car and 2 light goods vehicles
for senior management to commute and deliver goods to customers
respectively. To minimize the adverse impact on the environment, all
vehicles of the Group use unleaded petrol. The total combustion of
18,234.24 liters of unleaded petrol emits air pollutants including SOXx,
NOx and particulate matter, amounting to 0.27 kg, 113.89 kg and
10.86 kg respectively.
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Greenhouse gas emissions

The main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions is derived
from direct emission from the mobile combustion sources (“Scope
1), indirect emission from acquired electricity emissions (“Scope 2")
and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3"). The total greenhouse gases
emissions from Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 for the year ended
31 December 2018 are to 55.09 tons, 335.82 tons and 44.38 tons
respectively.

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office, therefore no hazardous
waste was being produced. Our non-hazardous wastes, which are
not much in quantity, are disposed off at the refuse collection points
set in the premise of the industrial park. The Group had conducted
environment impact assessment on the production facilities and result
indicated that emissions of air pollutants, greenhouse gases, water,
sewage and non-hazardous wastes comply with the PRC regulations.

The following measures have been implemented by the Group:
—  double-sided printings and reuse single-sided printed papers,

— using durable tableware instead of non-recyclable or disposable
ones in staff canteen in PRC; and

—  providing reusable face mask and protective cap to staff.

During the year, the Group did not produce a large amount of non-
hazardous waste.

The Group are proactively seeking opportunities to minimize the
impact of business activities on the environment. In order to reduce
the use of resources, the Group actively implemented measures in
energy conservation and pollution reduction.

Electricity

Electricity consumption by the Group was supplied by Hong Kong
Electric and national electricity grid in the PRC. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group consumed approximately
60,942 kWh of electricity for office and approximately 328,649
kWh of electricity for production workshop. Overall, the Group
contributed to consumption of 389,591 kWh and the total electricity
consumption intensity was approximately 138 kWh per m? of the
factory area.

Water

Water usage in both Hong Kong and the PRC operations is mainly
due to domestic consumption. In the process of quality checking, only
a small amount of water is used (for testing water resistance) and
the assembly lines do not produce any industrial sewage. To reduce
consumptions, water is reused whatever possible. We consumed
approximately 2,536 tons of municipal water for domestic use during
the year ended 31 December 2018, and the total water consumption
intensity was approximately 1.07 tons per m? of factory area. There
were no issues on the sourcing of water reported.
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Packaging materials

Gift box and plastic packaging materials are required for our finished
products. In 2018, a total of 16.84 tons of gift-box and 0.77 tons
plastic packaging materials were used, the plastics included protective
bubble and labels. The intensity of the total packaging materials used
was approximately 0.007 kg per tonnes of production.

The environmental and natural resources

To lower the environmental impact and use of natural resources, the
management of the Group would evaluate the policies from time to
time to create sustainable environmental value such as energy-saving
initiative. Also, to promote a culture for employees to have a good
practice of the Group’s resources friendly measures, the Group also
implemented a series of energy reduction measures in office, such as:

e switching off idle electric appliances;
e eliminating standby power by unplugging electronics devices;

e choosing energy efficient and environmentally friendly products
when replacing machinery and electrical appliances.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Company’s success relies on the continued support of its
dedicated workforce, the most valuable asset for sustaining business.
The Group respects and cares for our employees by creating
a delightful and safe workplace, as well as providing training
opportunities.

Employment

All labour related issues in terms of compensation, working hours,
rest periods, recruitment and promotion, dismissal procedures, equal
opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination are in compliance with
the Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Labour Law of the

PRC (FEARAMBELEE).

The Company is committed to creating a working atmosphere free
of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts or motives in
all phases of employment on the grounds of nationality, physical
ability, gender, age and any other legally protected status are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Employees are encouraged to report any
unlawful discrimination or any form of harassment. The Group
investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective actions
once we have confirmed the allegations.

In addition to performance bonus and statutory benefits, the Group
offeres to the employees other benefits including healthcare benefits,
maternity and paternity leave, marriage leave, and birthday leaves,
etc. On top of the compulsory social insurance under the Labour Law
in the PRC, employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to annual
health examinations.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,

HE2018F 12 A31HILFEE siAEH
Fral M EAEEETMNERE - BRER
B I -BRE- - FEHe - 2R
AR E RN TG HIBER

equal opportunity, diversity, discriminations.

Percentage of

No. of staff total staff
HETHH
ETHE Batk
Total number of employees EEH#H 186 100
Gender 15l
Male St 63 339
Female g 123 66.1
Age Group FERA
18-30 18&3073% 52 28.0
31-40 312405 74 39.2
41-50 41 &2 5075% 52 28.0
51 or above 5183 I 9 48
Geographical region HhFE [ 15
The PRC Ga 166 89.2
Hong Kong BB 20 10.8
Employee categories 1ES 5
Senior management mRERE 8 4.3
Middle management FRERE 15 8
General staff ETWET 163 87.7
Service period HR AR
Less than 5 years DRAF 112 60.2
5 to 10 years hETF 25 13.5
Over 10 years +EUE 49 26.3
Health and Safety BRERZE

The Group proactively works to reduce injury risks and occupational
diseases by establishing related management systems and organising
safety training for its workforce.

The Group aims to ensure a safe occupational environment and
manage health and safety risk at our production facilities. Warning
signs are posted at prominent positions, with potential health
impacts, handling procedures and preventive measures. Personal
protective equipment such as safety gloves, masks and safety goggles
are provided and required at work. Evaluation of safety practices is
conducted on a regular basis. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group did not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety issues and had not
encountered any work-related injury incidents.

Annual Report 2018
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Training and Development

The Group aims at providing suitable and valuable opportunities
for our talented employees. The Group assesses each employee at
the end of every year, on working performance, attitudes and other
key performance indicators. The appraisal results are used as one of
the considerations in the promotion, job title and renumerations.
Through this reviewing process, they can make corresponding
improvements and discuss their training needs with direct supervisors
so that their potentials are realised to the fullest.

The Group also subsidises employees for taking external training
courses which facilitates their personal and the Group's development.
The Company is committed to providing training opportunities for all
levels of employees.

The Group aims to provide a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment. Workplaces are equipped with fire and safety facilities
to prevent and control outbreak of fire accidents. Staff had been
trained and possessed basic knowledge in using fire extinguishing
equipment.

Labour standard

Labour rights are protected in accordance with local laws and
regulations. Hiring child labour and forced labour are strictly
prohibited in the Group. Identification documents of job applicants
are checked before the interview and signing of the employment
contract. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
not aware of any non-compliance relating to employment and labour
practices that had a significant impact on the Group.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The supply chains mainly cover two general categories: (i) office
supply chains; and (i) production supply chains. At the office level,
supply chains cover procurement for headquarter office and are
mainly stationaries (such as stationery, toner and paper). At the
production level, supply chains cover procurement of parts of
assembled parts of watch and packing materials.

By having stringent supply chain management, we ensure our
product quality and maintain our competitiveness in the market.
The Group also strive to ensures that suppliers will provide sufficient
after-sales services, that being one of the perquisites of the business
relationship. Additionally, the Group request the suppliers to comply
with relevant legislation when supplying goods and services to the
Group. The Group conducts annual evaluations of its suppliers to
ensure that quality is maintained, and that prices paid for goods and
services provided remain competitive. Any suppliers that were not
up to standard would be subject to re-evaluation before making any
further business dealings.

To enhance the sustainability of the supply chains and minimize
carbon footprints, the Group tried to source the raw materials locally.
In 2018, the Group has 989 suppliers with a majority of the suppliers
of the Group were located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Product responsibility

The Company is committed to providing high-quality stainless-
steel watches with an extensive range of designs and specifications
(sport, fashion, classic, diamond, etc). The Group obtained the ISO
9001 certification back in 1996. Production site of the Group is
certified with 1SO 9001:2015 Quality Management System in 2017.
To ensure on-going compliance with the requirements listed in ISO
9001, evaluations on the performance are carried out at least once a
year. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group were not
aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group concerning health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products.

To ensure the provision of quality products to customers, a series
of stringent internal quality control procedures are performed
throughout the watch manufacturing process. Quality check on the
watch parts and components before assembly, final watch products
during productions and packaged final watch products before
shipments on sampling basis are performed.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
experience any defect in the products nor returns from customers.
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Anti-corruption

The Company has defined ethical practices for the employees to
follow in the Code of Conduct. Unethical behaviours are strictly
prohibited in the Group. A whistleblowing policy is in place that
mandates employees to report any suspicious cases of unethical
behaviours to the human resources or internal audit committee.
They can report to the Group orally or in writing, the Group would
report the cases to the authorities if the case found to be sufficiently
supported with evidences.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was not aware
of any non-compliance with laws and regulations having a significant
impact on the Group, on bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, nor of any legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees.

COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Company has always strived to embed social responsibility in its
corporate culture by upholding the virtual of “taking from society and
giving back to society”. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group has donated over HK$300,000 to 13 charity organizations.
The beneficiary institutions included City University of Hong Kong,
the Hospital Authority and Po Leung Kuk. The Group will continue to
support a wide range of area of contributions, including education,
medicals, women’s rights by supporting other similar organizations.

I8 &
ARBMITATRIFIL T RERETHE
BT YBREAEBARLETERT
e BHREBBBER  BHEREAAL
BRI AAESLEZ B G M E[ A 5K
TEETR BREALAAESERLAN
AEBERE - — BRI BREAZTERTR -
REBE R E BRI

HE2018F12A31BLEE - KREFET
THEEBE DR BFFRASET@E
REMERERUHAEEENERATE
WES TTIAEEEAEENEEER
BITARERERERMY -

HE

HEKRE

RARMAKERIR AL  BELE]HN
2 BhBdgadMmAESE YL -
HE2018F 12 A31HILEE - KEEMR
13K & A K187 300,0008 7T - X
HEBREEERMAZ BRERBIR
RB - AEE KRB IFEMBEAHE
BEYRFECHNIBRER  WHE  BEXK
TR o

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited {E{Z & El1Z=x R A 7



HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANVEY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanvey
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 184,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BA®RE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional %R
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated

% BR

BEZERHAE  MREZFELSY
FEGARB 2 EAMBRREMER

=
=
financial statements of the current period. These matters were ZEE EETEZEBEAMB®RER

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BEREKEE

Trade receivables

EZEKSE

Refer to note 4 and note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$43,868,000 (2017:
HK$49,518,000) and provision for impairment of
approximately HK$394,000 (2017: HK$394,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days (2017: 30 to
90 days). Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables and
the sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances,
and on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected credit
losses model involved the use of significant management
judgements and estimates.

F2HE A BHRME4RME21 -

EEEN2018F12A31HEE S EIRRBBATELY
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREBERTONANEERRERSE

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

e  Understanding and evaluating the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and monitor
its credit risk, and validating the control effectiveness
on a sample basis;

e  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;

e  Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year end
and corroborating explanations from management
with supporting evidence, such as performing
public search of credit profile of selected customers,
understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and

e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables
and determine the impairment provision to be supportable
by available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BAT®RE

Key Audit Matter
BRELER

Revenue recognition

W 75 AT

Refer to Note 4, 6 and Note 7 the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring the control of
promised goods or services to a customer in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for that goods or services.

We focused on this area due to the huge volume of
revenue transactions generated in many different
locations.
B2HEA M ERARMTL, 6 RIEET -
TRBHEERT P BB AR
%

&H}h\ EEBEERARR
- RIFERW S ©

A8 mE R
%5 B kR

o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEREBERTONNEERRERSE

Our procedures in relation to assess the recognition of
revenue from manufacturing and trading business of
watches included:

e Understanding, evaluating and testing
management’s controls in respect of the Group’s
sales transactions from contract approval, recording
of sales based on contract terms, through
reconciliations with cash receipts and customer’s
records;

e Testing of revenue recorded covering different
locations and customers, using sampling techniques,
by examining the relevant customer orders, goods
delivery notes and customer’s receipt note. In
addition, we sent confirmations to certain customers
to confirm their balance with the Group; and

e  Testing the recognition of material sales transactions
close to the end of the reporting period to assess
whether those sales transactions were recorded in
appropriate accounting period in accordance with
the Group’s revenue recognition policy.

We found the amount and timing of the revenue recorded
were supported by the available evidence.

BEEERTRAELREEEHRRENABEF 2R

o EBRSWCGREEPLEENR - TH FE
EREY BEEERAOIEMELAHERS H
KA KGR I & PR AC SRR T2 I

o FAHMEERN BEREEPITE BEVMRNER
BEPWEEEEMIHERE TR REP K
& o MO BEERE TEP R ARARIAERNER
E\m.m ﬁ%&

ZEHRORERRNERNEER H IR ARG
ZEHERXRHAERR BEEENKEHERBBR
ANBENEFH -

EEREMTHREN R ARRAABEEREX -



66

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BA®RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Hft&#
EERHHMENEBE - A AR BEF
BANMER  BTEERAMBRERE
S RBE RS ((HeER) -

BEEHEAMBHRRNBERIL NREE M
B BENT AHZEEMENEREM
HANEFEW

HKEBTHRAVBHRRNESL  BFK
AERHERMER  ELHBERT  ZE
HttER R ERGAMBERRAESFEE
PR TRNBERFHEEREBLE
UFEEEARERRANER - ERNESE
ERTHIE MRESA/EMERTF
EER#ERRL  EEFERELFE -
FEAE BFREMEMESE -

EERBEREREERGEUBR
RAERBEHNERE

EEARERBEESHAGRANE
B BHREEREERBGINEER
TREEEMPENGRAMBHRE LY
HERBBEGRAMBRRONBE T FER
RERFFR AR M G B AR R A AR
HREESI B R

KRR AMBHRRE EFARNE &
SERFELELEMEN  YHEERBR K
RRSECEZARNTE  UREAKE
REDGHEN BRIEFEEHR BEE
BERHFILLE  HHEAMEENS
(WIS

BERENMBHR
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2018 S5
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

s HESRHARBECESTARMBRE
HIER &R - ARIRATER M EIZRE -
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B BAT®RE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 18 March 2018

Annual Report 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

el RkREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E 20184 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A831BLEE

2018 2017
20185 2017 F
Notes HK’'000 HK'000
BtaE FTET FHT
Revenue et 7 182,478 174,817
Cost of sales $HE R A (127,845) (123,795)
Gross profit E7 54,633 51,022
Other income and other loss, net H b A K
Ho A 518 3 28 8 2,126 2,505
Selling and distribution expenses HE ko HRAX (5,994) (6,331)
Administrative expenses THHAR (38,083) (31,644)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 9 (4,135) (4,710)
Listing expenses ETEA (13,048) (4,826)
(Loss)/profit before tax BB A (BE), B8R 10 (4,501) 6,016
Income tax expense FriSHif &2 13 (2,603) (2,056)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (EE),ER (7,104) 3,960
Other comprehensive Hi 2@ (B8R)
(loss)/income KA
ltem that may be reclassified HnEimak
subsequently to profit or loss: ZEmMIER -
Exchange differences arising on MEEERENZ5
translating (78) 490
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FHRNHEHMEAE
income for the year, (Eﬂ‘g)/ﬂﬁU\ '
net of tax 2R IE (78) 490
Total comprehensive FRz2@E(ER),/
(loss)/income for the year PN -t (7,182) 4,450
(Loss)/profit for the year EEFER(EE)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company RATHEBA (7,104) 3,960
Total comprehensive EBEFEREZE
(loss)/income for the year (B#8]), WA
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company RATHEABA (7,182) 4,450
(Loss)/earnings per share
attributable to equity RATEREE AL
owners of the Company SR (5R) BF
Basic and diluted (HK$ cents) BEARKREE GEN) 5 (0.82) 0.53

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

MERZEFEEMBHRER ZAMED -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma BB R

As at 31 December 2018 7220184 12 A31H

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2018 2017
2018 £ 20174
Notes HK’000 HK’000
Bt FTET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BRERE&E 16 35,691 35,860
Investment properties BEME 17 14,800 15,000
Financial asset at fair value through & AFET A
profit or loss BaRNEREE 24 440 -
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 18 = 440
Deferred tax assets RETIEE B 19 139 139
51,070 51,439
Current assets REEE
Inventories ey 20 17,384 14,431
Trade receivables =) & 21 43,474 49,124
Other receivables, deposits and E g U ER A
prepayments B REMNR 22 6,991 3,319
Amounts due from an ultimate FEU— [ B A AE R
holding company UNGIE/SE] 23 - 11,118
Financial asset at fair value through £ A F{ET ABEH
profit or loss TREE 24 21,020 -
Other financial assets EtmemiEE 24 = 16,673
Pledged bank deposits BEARITHER 25 21,701 28,505
Cash and bank balances Be MB1THES 25 40,333 9,431
150,903 132,601
Current liabilities REAE
B SN FIE
Trade and bills payables N R 26 68,961 52,215
Other payables and accrued o E N IR
expenses K et E A 27 5,913 11,472
Contract liabilities AHEE 28 3,787 -
Amount due to a director B —REEHIE 23 - 26
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 29 - 1,013
Borrowings BN 29 42,556 64,091
Obligation under finance leases BE A EAE 30 687 144
Tax payable FEI TR IR 1,402 693
123,306 129,654
Net current assets RBEESE 27,597 2,947
Total assets less current liabilities EEZEMABEE 78,667 54,386

Annual Report 2018 &3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 %
Notes HK’000 HK’000
Bt FET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings & 29 = 22,000
Obligation under finance leases LA E AR 30 1,605 486
1,605 22,486
Net assets BEEFE 77,062 31,900
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital A& 37 10,000 -
Reserves M 67,062 31,900
Total equity A 77,062 31,900

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2019 and signed on

its behalf by:

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement

REE

Executive Director

HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EESMN2019F3 A 18 B M IFHET 3

REMB®mE  LAATIH

RE

AU Corona Ching Mei
BEE
Executive Director

HITEF

TEERR

MERZFEEMBHRER ZAMAD -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E 20184 12 A31 HILFE

Share Share Exchange Other  Retained
Capital premium  reserves reserve  earnings Total
BA BROEE ERFRE HERE REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TRT AT TET
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H 1,000 - (927 - 27,377 27,450
Profit for the year FRETF - - - - 3,960 3,960
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EWA
for the year - - 490 - - 490
Total comprehensive income FRZARALE
for the year - - 490 - 3,960 4,450
Effect of reorganisation EANFE (1,000) - - 1,000 - -
At 31 December 2017 and 20175128318 R
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H - - (437) 1,000 31,337 31,900
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (7,104) (7,104)
Other comprehensive FREMZEEE
loss for the year - - (78) - - (78)
Total comprehensive loss FRXABELSE
for the year - - (78) - (7,104) (7,182)
Capitalisation issue (note 1) B BT (M) 7,500 (7,500) - - - -
Issue of new shares by way of ~ WARR(D B & R 317
share offer (note2) ity (M3E2) 2,500 60,000 - - - 62,500
Transaction costs attributable to {71 (3 I
issue of new shares R G - (10,156) - - - (10,156)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12318 10,000 42,344 (515) 1,000 24,233 77,062
Notes: et -
1. Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of the 1. BEALAZEREMN2018%6 420

Company on 20 June 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by the creation of additional
9,962,000,000 shares. Pursuant to the capitalisation issue of the Company
passed by all the shareholders of the Company on 20 June 2018, additional
749,999,999 shares were allotted and issued to Million Easy Enterprises Ltd

on 20 June 2018.

2. The Company was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 2.
12 July 2018 by way of share offer of 25,000,000 public offer share and
225,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer price of HK$0.25 per
share, the net proceeds after deducting the listing fee were approximately

HK$34,470,000.

Annual Report 2018 &3
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E 20184 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Notes HK’000 HK'000
k=3 FEx T
Operating activities REEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEEAT (E518) EF (4,501) 6,016
Adjustments for: HATIERETRHE
Interest income FEHA (769) (1,114)
Net foreign exchange gain E X Uk & 558 8 (833) (269)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,  HEWE - HE M
plant and equipment, net i (W) EE
R 8 (90) 3,080
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMED
property, net Wes - FHE 8 - (600)
Interest expenses B 9 4,135 4,710
Net loss/(gain) arising from wEWERTE
change in fair value of SEELNER
investment properties (U z=) %8 8 200 (3,218)
Net (gain)/loss arising from disposal & Z A FEFTA
of financial assets at fair value ERehEE
through profit or loss EAER (W)
EE R 8 (326) 114
Depreciation of property, ME - BE R
plant and equipment BB E 16 4,779 4,972
Operating cash flows before EEESRBAIRKE
movements in working capital BER 2,595 13,691
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEm,md (2,953) 1,815
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2 5 fEU B/ 4>~
(18 0) 5,650 (26,634)
(Increase)/decrease in other H b e U RIS
receivables, deposits and EE RBEANR
prepayments (%) (3.672) 1,980
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due i R AL A A A1 K
from an ultimate holding company &34 (1 41) 11,118 (3,256)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to JEff —ZEEHIE
a director CRA) /1 mn (26) 23,423
Decrease/(increase) in amounts JE s BE B 5 5K TR
due from related parties A (38 an) - (3,879)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills & 5 i 1~ 5038 K FE <
payable SHIE M, CRL) 16,746 (7,974)
Increase in contract liabilities GHEEEM 3,787 -
Decrease in other payables and E AR
accrued expenses FERTRSR A (5,559) (1,280)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Cash paid for investment

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Payment for acquisition of financial
asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from sales of investment
properties

Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank

deposits
Interest received

Net cash generated from/(used in)

investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share
Repayment of finance leases
Leases interest paid
Borrowings interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Notes
k=3
KRS, (FTA)
e
ERATISH

REFBRE (FTA)
REFH

REEH
BEYE BFE
Bgi
BREMNRE
HEZ N FERFA
BameREE
1S 300R
HEWE - BE R
RS FUR
BERAVEFARR
MEREE 2R

hEREME
F1S30R
EHIRRITER
B (3E 1)
B WA B

REEBFRE (FFA)
REFHE

mMEEH
TR PR1S FRIR
BEMEHSE
ENEERNE

B HEFFE
&K1 3R

EE B

BMEZBHME
REFH

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK’000 HK’000
FExT FAT
27,686 (2,114)

(1,894) (2,780)
25,792 (4,894)
(3,190) (4,064)
(8,776) (245)
9,102 131
234 279
(3,996) -
= 6,700
6,804 (28,505)
418 765
596 (24,939)
52,344 -
(187) (213)
(35) (8)
(4,100) (4,702)
188,984 320,787
(232,519) (279,250)
4,487 36,614
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ

Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31BLLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Notes HK’000 HK'000
BtaE FTET FHT
Net increase in cash and cash RERBESEEYWIZM
equivalents EE 30,875 6,781
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHRESRBESEEY
the beginning of year 8,418 1,080
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNFEDE R BB R B
changes 1,040 557
Cash and cash equivalents at FRRSRREFEY
the end of the year 40,333 8,418
Analysis of balances of cashand HBE&RRESEEUWES
cash equivalents: A
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHERR 25 40,333 9,431
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (1,013)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated 4REHRESRERZ
in the consolidated statements of MRS RBELFEY
cash flows 25 40,333 8,418

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7



CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
June 2017 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Unit 3,5 and 6,
15 th Floor, Tower One, Ever Gain Plaza, No. 88 Container Port
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in design and development,
manufacturing and distribution of watch products on original
design manufacturing (“ODM") basis for watch manufacturers,
brand owners and watch importers across the globe.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 12 July 2018 (the “Listing Date").

The consolidated financial statement is presented in (“HK$" or
“HKD") which is also the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000), except where otherwise indicated.

REORGANISATION

The Consolidated financial statement has been prepared based
on the accounting policies set out in Note 4 which conform with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

The companies now comprising the Group underwent a group
reorganisation as fully explained in the section headed “History,
reorganisation and group structure” of the prospectus in
preparation for the offer of the shares of the Company on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Share Offer”). Before the
completion of the Group Reorganisation, the operation of the
Group was carried out by Million Easy, which was wholly and
directly owned by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Annual Report 2018 S5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 E E 20184 12 A31 HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

REORGANISATION (Continued)

The Reorganisation involved the setting up the Company,
Beyond Blossom Investments Limited (“Beyond Blossom”),
Precise Time Global Limited (“Precise Time"), Big Hope
Investments Limited (“Big Hope"”), Diamond Fountain
Investments Limited (“Diamond Fountain”) and interspersing
the Company, Vast Peak Enterprises Limited (“Vast Peak”),
Talent Gift International Limited (“Talent Gift"), 3 Wells Watch
Industries Limited (“3 Wells”), Cheer China Group Holdings
Limited (“Cheer China"”), Cheer Wells Trading Limited (“Cheer
Wells”), Creative Profit Investment Limited (“ Creative Profit”),
Shenzhen 3 Wells Watch Company Limited (“Shenzhen
3 Wells”), Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, is continued to be
controlled by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk and is regarded as a
continuing entity. Accordingly, the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements
of cash flows for Period have been prepared to include the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the companies
now comprising the Group as if the group structure upon
the completion of the Group Reorganisation had been in
existence throughout the Period, or since their respective dates
or incorporation, where is a shorter period. The consolidated
statements of financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017 have been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the companies now comprising the Group as if the current
group structure upon completion of the Group Reorganisation
had been in existence at those dates taking into account the
respective dates of incorporation, where applicable.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated
on combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

ERMTREEITERYE
HEA(EBMBREE
EUR))
A 2 £F B 3 51 4 28 0 37 6T IR 4G485
AEBHBHREER
AEBRAFEEREANAT B ES
GEHAAE ((ERGHALG]) BH
2 H AT AR AT E B I R 8

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to

HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

BB EREE 2BIA
F95%
BB REE REZFNANRER
F15% BB
25 (BRHERS NEZ S RBEMRE
2EZE9)
-REENRH
BB REE IBRRBERERZ S
EYEACHES) ZEBRE
BB REE RREAMBESES
F4% (EFTR) FAFRBA DB —bF
ERRBHRSER
FOREHTA
BEEERE2LS  EA014522016F
(BFT7) BB AN HREER
HEEREN—F2
BBQENEWR  RENENER
HEY

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("HKFRS 15”)

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard retrospectively
only to the contracts that are not completed at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared with HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

e Design and development;

e Manufacturing; and

e Distribution of watch products

Information about the Group’s performance obligations

and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 4.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“"HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 15

The application on HKFRS 15 has no material impact
on the Group’s retained earnings at 1 January 2018.
The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

FER#HI REIETTE B
FEA (BB BREE

Al ]) )

RAFEE B 4 RO R&IE

SIEARMBEHREER (B)

3.1 BEBUBHREERFI5HKEEF

FREA 5 (BB B HEE
BIZE15%) (/&)

B EFE B SR ERIE 15
P> E B

FER BB B RS LERSE 155510
EYAREER2018FE1A1B 2
RBENELEERATE - A
HR2018F 1 A1 B2 AT
AR PHERZ S EELAA
B OIHXEBTENEB LT
BIEENR -

Carrying
amounts under
Carrying HKFRS 15 at
amounts 1 January
previously 2018
reported at BESSE
31 December B 75 3R 5 ZE B
2017 FE155%
FRIR2017 F R 2018 F
12A31H Reclassification 1A1H
E2HRNEEE BN B RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
(Note)
(Ht7)
Current Liabilities mENBE
Other payable and accrued Hiv B RIBRIETER
expense 11,472 (6,058) 5,414
Contract liabilities arma’ - 6,058 6,058

Note: As at 1 January 2018, receipts in advance from manufacturing of
watch products pre-sold of HK$6,058,000 previously included in other
payables and accrued expense were reclassified to contract liabilities.

Annual Report 2018 4R

Bt - 201841 A1 8 » SeRist AR M RESR
HEREFERZAEBEFRER
B8 k78 6,058,000 L EFH H 48
B2ENEE-

81



82

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets and lease receivables and (3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained earnings and other components of
equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (“HKAS 39").

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 4.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”)

(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at

the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

e RARIERT BB I

EEA(EFEMBREE

all) e
AEFEERHEROFITREE
STEBPBHREER (E)

3.2

BB BHREERFIFE LT
H(E)
BEAREFEEGEHREEEI
Vil =13
TRErEREERSMERE
AERHEMEEREXHEHRRH
(2018F 1 A1 H) REEEUH
REENFOF R BB EHER
F 3R A EEEBIEER T
D BERETE °

Financial assets
at fair value

through
profit or loss
Available- Other ("FVTPL")
for-sale (“AFS") financial required by
financial assets assets HKFRS 9
ERUKRE
ZRIE R
BERQIFE
FFAEE
(MEZA¥E
it H & SFFABREN 2
SHEE HthemiEE SRMEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHETT
Closing balance at M2017F 12 A31HZ
31 December 2017 — HXR&EH BB
HKAS 39 RSB 3958 440 16,673 -
Effect arising from initial BRERBEBUBREE
application of HKFRS 9: R 9SREERTE
Reclassification from other EtmemEEETSE
financial assets (Note a) (Hiata) - (16,673) 16,673
Reclassification from available- BRIt HE SR EE
for-sale financial assets EEFOE (KiEb)
(Note b) (440) - 440
Opening balance at R2018F1A1HZ
1 January 2018 B4R - - 17,113
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9”)

(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Note (a): The Group’s key management personnel life issuance policies
are required to be held as FVTPL under HKFRS 9 as it do not
meet HKFRS 9 criteria as solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Note (b): The Group’s unlisted club debentures with a fair value of
HK$440,000 were reclassified from AFS financial assets to
financial assets at FVTPL. As the management considered the
cash flows from these investments do not meet the HKFRS
9 criteria as solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, accordingly classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivable
from manufacturing and trading of watches. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, are assessed on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
basis as there had been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

The directors considered that the measurement of ECL
has no material impact to the Group’s retained earnings at
1 January 2018.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. ERA#FIREBIEBHMK
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ERA((EEBMBREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) all) ¢
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are FA 2 6 [ 58 ol A R RY FTRT IR AR A4S
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) RIERMBREER (&)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 3.3 HERABEHEREHBImEH
financial position arising from the application of all BRERELEZRHE
new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting BREMAEESGTHE#
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of &) BV EE MBI RAE
financial position had to be restated. The following table B TRHEIEXFEER 2
show the adjustments recognised for each of the individual EHRRAE LT TEERTY
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by the 2I15F B -
changes have not been included.
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
2017 & ERB% ERB% 20185
12A31H HEAER BEER 1818
(RER) FE155% L (&%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHEIT
Non-current Assets EMBEE
Financial assets at ROV ETAERD
FVTPL TREE - - 440 440
AFS financial assets AftHEeREE 440 - (440) -
Current Asset MENE E
Other financial asset Hih & @& E 16,673 - (16,673) -
Financial asset at FVTPL RAFETAERDN
THEE - - 16,673 16,673
Current Liabilities mENa &
Other payable and accrued £ ftb f& 1~ 5U7E &
expense fET & A 11,472 (6,058) -~ 5,414
Contract liabilities afaE - 6,058 - 6,058
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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R
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new
and revised to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases ("HKFRS 16”)

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases ("HKAS 17") and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis
of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. In
addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback transactions to
be determined based on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to
whether the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted
as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessors, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$2,071,000 as disclosed
in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained earnings without restating
comparative information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERETFTHRBE

POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
discussed in Note 5.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., EXETBERBE®

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

3 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basic of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. ERETBEREEE )

924

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the 'measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquire prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounting using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with
the customer, and interest income is accrued separately under
the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a significant
financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or
less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from sales of watches
Revenue from sales of watches are recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from sales of watches (Continued)

In comparative period, revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Rental income

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance, from
properties let under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortized cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to amortized cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

In comparative period, interest income from a financial
asset (other than a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss) is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is computed using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned asset.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The property, plant and equipment is derecognised over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account of their residual
value, on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

20% or over the lease
terms, if shorter

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor Vehicle 20%

Leasehold building over the lease term

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statements of financial position as an obligation
under finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the period s in
which they incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the lased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentive is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets other than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All reqgular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1st January 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other
revenue and other income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OCI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

e oninitial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the "other revenue and other
income" line item.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade and other receivables). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt
obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group'’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and
other receivables and amounts due from customers are
each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related parties
are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual
basis);
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

. Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial asset FVTPL, AFS financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognized and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statements excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the other revenue line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 3 to the
financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS or are not classified as loans and receivables
or financial assets at FVTPL.

AFS debt security that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, deposits paid, other receivables,
loan receivables, time deposits and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re- organisation; or

e  disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60-90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9)
(Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
the consolidated income statements. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to the profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS debt security, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, promissory
note, obligations under finance leases, trade payables, deposits
received, accruals and other payables (excluding receipt in
advance) and amounts due to non-controlling interests) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)
(b) an entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiaries is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group (which the other entity is a member);

both entity are joint ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employees are also related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); or

the entity or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influence by, that
person in their dealing with the entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Income taxes
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
Period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Historical
Financial Information and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the Period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences in monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in which they arise except for

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the accounting
policies below); and

e  exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss according to the
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange difference reserve.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowings
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the PRC based employees
of the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of the
employees’ salaries, subject to certain ceiling. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees payable under the plans described above.

Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans
are held separately from the subsidiary in an independent fund
managed by the PRC government.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group's
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with significant balances and credit impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current income tax
payable and deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2017 and
2018 were approximately HK$693,000 and HK$1,402,000 and
HK$139,000 and HK$139,000 respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
after taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to
be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the management performs an inventory review on a
product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting period and
assess the need for write-down of inventories.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decision makers
("CODMs") for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. The Group currently operates
in the manufacturing and trading business of watches. A single
management team reports to the CODMs who comprehensively
manages the entire business. Accordingly, the Group does not
have separate reportable segments.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as they were not
regularly provided to the CODMs of the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from customers located
in the Indonesia, Hong Kong, Brazil, India, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, Australia, United Arab Emirates (“UAE") and Turkey.
The Group's revenue by the geographical location of the
customers, determined based on the location to which the
Group bills the customers, is detailed below:

7B E

AEEELEREE ((TEEBRE
) EFMEERD I Ky &R IRF
EOERETRARMRERE®
HREEIE - ARBE AR E FRE
ENBEEEK BE-EEEBRRRE
HEERREBNIELERRERE
e Hlt AEEYEBIAHRED

7B e

HREBLERRERETHRERS
ROMEERBRENERAEERD
R KRB HUEE2HROMBEE
rBE-

ih B8 & ¥
rEEMKmEEZRBHE B
B EE BRI BT RN
fhfEE A R ((MBE) Rt FE
EMEP -AEEIREFPHMIBEMNE (R
BAEEZHEENTPIEET)
oM EFBIT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 €

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Indonesia ENJe 52,158 -
Hong Kong BB 21,344 79,876
Brazil B 25,287 31,755
India ENE 12,557 174
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia poy =R (=i ale 12,125 4,938
Australia SEM 8,704 8,181
UAE o] B4 28 7,695 9,842
Turkey THHE 3,180 4,030
Others (Note) H (K7aE) 39,428 36,021
182,478 174,817

Note: Other geographical locations are mainly located in Sweden, Spain,
Singapore and Germany.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The Group's business activities are conducted predominantly in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets* by the geographical location of the assets is
detailed below:

DEER @)

1 78 B (48)
AEETEREERTENELY -
BEAEEREE LB SRS HIE
FBEECMEREBENT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 €
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Hong Kong B 44,516 45,348
PRC s 5,975 5,512
50,491 50,860

* Non-current assets exclude deferred tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets and financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Revenue from major customers
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

* FRPEETEBEERBEAE M
HESREAEMRATEMABENE
MEE -

REFTEFEFHWE
EREFEE AR EE A 10% A LR
BRI

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A831BLEE

2018 2017
2018 & 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A BEFEA 52,158 51,344
Customer B =FB 25,265 25,226

The segmentations are based on the information about the
operation of the Group that management uses to make
decisions and regularly review by the chief operating decision
maker of the purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance. For the year ended 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group only engaged
operating segment in ODM (Original Design Manufacturer).
No analysis of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of other
reportable segment is presented.

DEDEREREERNERARRE
DB RARETHEMUSIRERT
EOHBRFHEERRZAEEBLE
B o EHZE 2018412 A31 H X% 2017
FINRANBLEFE AEBEELSE
ODM (RERFTEE) K& D E - BIES
PIAEEHEMARED B EE &
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Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 1& £ B B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RS R R M
7. REVENUE 7. W&
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finished watches F A o 135,361 130,799
SKD kits REMBEEN 7.885 41,515
Watch parts F ka1 39,232 2,503
Revenue recognised at a point in time R E RIS 182,478 174,817
8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSS, NET 8. HttKW ARHMERE F8
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income FEUW A 769 355
Interest income from related parties REBE T REEN
and director B U A - 759
Rental income HalA 300 338
Exchange gain, net P& 5 Uy o F 58 833 269
Sundry income FETEA 8 160
Gain on disposal of investment property  H & & W2 2 = 600
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HE W% - KE &%
and equipment, net Ihzs,/ (E518) F8 90 (3,080)
Net (loss)/gain arising from change in KEMEANFEEYHELN
fair value of investment properties (E518) /W= 55
(note 17) (Hrat17) (200) 3,218
Net gain/(loss) arising from disposal of B &L A FEF AEZREH
financial assets at FVTPL CRMEEELENNE
(BE)F8 326 (114)
2,126 2,505
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e B RS R R M A
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE
2018 2017
2018 2017 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on: AT HEMHE
Borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFERNTEER
five years I fE 3K 4,100 4,491
Obligation under finance leases B e AR 35 8
Bank overdraft interest RITBEZFE - 211
4,135 4,710
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BrBiAT (B51R) % F
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBHBRFT A (BE) 5F B Mk
TH&IE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEME (HaE11) 5,296 4,776
Staff costs (excluded directors’ BTITHA (e iE
emoluments) EEME) 12,742 15,647
Bonuses TE4L 749 694
Retirement benefit scheme contributions i K18 Fll 51 2 £ 3% 1,142 1,347
Total staff costs B TR AL 14,633 17,688
19,929 22,464
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BLAT Bl & 1,000 219
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERERBTE
equipment (Note 16) (H1it 16) 4,779 4,972
Write-off of inventories (note) FEiM hE) 773 532
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR I MFERA
expenses 121,851 112,732
Operating lease in respect of: NTEERNLERE -
— office equipment o VNS 213 203
— rental premises —HEME 1,708 2,008
Commission paid ENAE 1,983 2,338
Note: Written-off of inventories were included in cost of sales. Biat - FEMENE Ay ERAK -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap. 622G), the aggregate amounts, the directors received
remuneration from the subsidiaries now comprising the Group
for their appointment as directors of these subsidiaries.

M"M.EEME

161 GEM _E i #8281 ]2 B9 22 5 1647128
3BERAF (BB EFRER) B
Bl ($6226%)  EFRESES
BREWBA RN E E B A
BIZRES I T B 2 R 0 3 B
m -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2018 2017

2018 & 20174

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Directors’ fees EEEE 225 -
Salaries and bonuses TE&EREA 3,950 4,060
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 38 /K48 Fll 51 2 7% 54 54
Other short-term benefits H b 52 HAtE F 1,067 662
5,296 4,776

The remuneration of each of these directors as recorded in the
financial statements of the subsidiaries is set out below:

MERRP B PLBENLZTES
EEMFHEIIMT

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018FE12A31BLEE

Retirement
benefit Other
Directors’  Salaries and scheme short-term
fee bonuses contributions benefits Total
BAKEF
EEZwE IER®4 SRR HttiEEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER TR THER THER
Executive directors: HOEE:
Mr. Cheuk (note (a)) EREHE@G) - 1,950 18 1,067 3,035
Mrs. Cheuk (note (b)) S AKX (ATiE b)) - 1,300 18 = 1,318
Ms. Heide Cheuk FYBL T
(note (c)) (et () - 700 18 = 718
Independent non- BNFERTES !
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REELE  MH
Homer M.H. 75 - - - 75
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng AL E 75 - - - 75
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT
Wendy 75 - - - 75
225 3,950 54 1,067 5,296
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e M| RME

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) MN.EEZME @

Year ended 31 December 2017
BZE2017FN2A3HLEE

Retirement
benefit Other
Directors’ Salaries and scheme short-term
fee bonuses  contributions benefits Total
RRREA
EEHe IERREA A Et R EER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET FHET FET FTET
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Cheuk (note (a)) SREMH@) - 1,950 18 662 2,630
Mrs. Cheuk (note (b)) S AKX (Ba# b)) - 1,300 18 - 1,318
Ms. Heide Cheuk 2T
(note (c)) (M7t () - 810 18 - 828
Independent non- BUFNTES:
executive directors:
Mr. Yu Sau Ning REELE  MH
Homer M.H. - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng HEMBEE - - - - -
Ms. Yee Wai Fong REFRT
Wendy - - - - -
- 4,060 54 662 4,776
Notes: HtaE -
(@)  Mr. Cheuk is the directors of Beyond Blossom, Precise Time, Big Hope, (a) FERAERMERE EFR K& ER-E

Diamond Fountain, Vast Peak, Talent Gift, 3 Wells, Cheer China, Cheer
Wells, Creative Profit and Shenzhen 3 Wells and has been appointed
as chairman, chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company on 12 June 2017.

FoEBSHREBHEIR
FIN=ZHOESIWER2017F6 712
AEZTARNARER  1TTRAHFL
TESE-

(b)  Mrs. Cheuk is the directors of Beyond Blossom, Precise Time, Big Hope, (b) FEAKNBMEE EF 2% ER-E
Diamond Fountain, Vast Peak, Talent Gift, 3 Wells, Cheer China, Cheer FEBH =ZH BE -@®BHF BEIR
Wells, Creative Profit and Shenzhen 3 Wells and has been appointed as Y =HBHESWER2017F6 712
executive director of the Company on 12 June 2017. AEZEARARRARINITES -

() Ms. Heide Cheuk has been appointed as executive director of the (0 =SIELZTER2017F6R12BEE

Company on 12 June 2017.

During the reporting period, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Directors did not waive or agree to waive any emoluments
during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

12. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR NR.EEMEcREREEEHNE
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals during the years ended HE2017FEK%2018F 12 A31 HILE
31 December 2017 and 2018 (included 3 and 3 directors) B AfumZeHMA LR EEISE
respectively, and details of whose remuneration are set out in E3REE BHEMNTFMFBEER L
Note 11 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining X1 BT 2R R2E T = H M
2 and 2 highest paid individuals who are not directors are as AT (FEES)NMSFBENOT :
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20185 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Salaries, allowance and benefit in kind ~ T& ~ 2B R EWEF| 1,039 1,632
Bonuses FE4T 170 559
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iE K48 FI| 51 21 4 5% 36 58
1,245 2,249

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FTHERUTHENESHIEER

emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: BAHMAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017

2018 2017 F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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12. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR 1. EEMERSREEEMNES
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ()

The number of senior management (excluding directors) whose
emoluments fell within in the following bands is as follows:

FHERATHENSREEAR (T
BRES)ABWAT

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31HLLEE

2018 2017

2018 FF 20174

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 T 5 5

13.

During the reporting period, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The Group is subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at a rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2 million of estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million. Other subsidiaries of the Company
are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the rate of 16.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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BERA AKEREBERALERSH
AL HM - ERESIREMAR
MAREEE 2 528 - SERRERA

f& -

13. RSB X

REFSHENEBEBARES ([R
BRARES]OBRARRN - K
BHANFEHENABERARTS
BMERAER -

HE2017E12A83MBILEE - &~ &
E/E17 16.5% 2 B RBUMEBFEH -

MR2018F 3 A21 B BB LS RSB
2017 FR s (BR]) (B 75%) RPIER
([RBIER]) - SIAMEGFEFH o
R EZRN2018F 3 A28 HEEX A
EERIHRBEFIEER - RIERAAS
FIEH cERESEERBEE2HEET
i #5152 8.25% B REURFEIE - ™
BE2E BB TR RN 812 16.5% B
TREBURTRTE - TR & M AR B RS 8
MEEEEENBEER—1£165%
BE -

Hitt - BSFRB - A2aHF—FK
BMEBARERE2E 8B TNEsE
PR ML 8.25% TR KA - /A
BIBB2 B EB TG ERFOER
1 16.5% TR BT -BIZE 20184 12
A31BIEFE  ARRIEMHNE QA
BIE16.5% M RBNEBFER
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group
had unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$3,305,000 and
HK$2,925,000 respectively, available to offset against future
profits.

The subsidiary of the Group established in the PRC is generally
subjected to PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) on its taxable
income at an income tax rate of 25%.

13. RERE X @
HE2017FN2018F 12 A31BIEF
G AEBARBBHRBEEESRNOA
3,305,000 7T }.2,925,0005% Jt © 7]
FAREIERI AT o

AEBEHHENEQFREAMRER
U AL PTG T R 25% B B (b %
PR ([RGB )

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Tax charge comprises: I Z BT
Current tax B ERFH I8
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBENEN 2,477 1,809
—PRCEIT —Fh B EMREH 126 301
2,603 2,110
Deferred tax (Note 19) EIEFLIE (KaE19)
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBFEN - (54)
2,603 2,056

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 1& £ B B R A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for jurisdiction in which the
Company’s and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(Continued)

BARRR RE KIS E A RFTE
YA R KR TE B SR 515 80 B A s B AT
HAMAMSHAZ AR ERNEGTE
HMIERHEENAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2018 2017

2018 2017 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (E51R) EF (4,501) 6,016
Tax at the applicable income tax rates RERAMSHETENTIE (509) 1,045
Tax effect of non-taxable incomes DA B RA T G2 (333) (785)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN A] 3R 5 X MO FR A5 52 22 2,992 1,476
Tax loss not recognised RIERH TS BB 453 322
Under-provision in previous year BEFEEETR - 52

Tax effect of temporary difference not ~ FIERMERFZEHN
recognised Mg E — (54)
2,603 2,056
14. DIVIDENDS 14. B E

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since
the date of its incorporation.
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15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)/earnings per share are calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

15. 8k (BB &F
SREA(BR) BIRAATEE
AREAE (B518) /H FIBR A N E BT
ERBREAMETHBGHE -

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Earnings 27
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of KRNRHEE AL
the Company (E518) s A (7,104) 3,960
Number of shares (thousands) BHER (LF5H)
Weighted average number of EEREAREEAT
ordinary shares for calculating basic B AR N AE T 8
and diluted earnings per share 867,808 750,000

The calculation of earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2017 are based on the profit for the year
attributable to equity owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,960,000 and on the basis of 750,000,000 shares of
the Company in issue, being the number of share in issue
immediately after the completion of capitalisation issue.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, diluted
(loss)/earnings per share are the same as the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as the Company did not have any potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

HE2017F 12 A31HILFENEFR
BRI TVIREARREREE ARIGE
A3 F 49 3,960,000 7% T B E R A A
B8 3 1TH) 750,000,000 A% B {7 (BN E
BEE AN BEITTER BRI E BT E
B)FtE -

HZE2018FE K 201712 A31 HIEE
€ HRRAAREHZE2018FE K% 2017 F
A3 BILEFETEEEEELRR
BTSN - B REE (B518) /BF
HEREAR (EE) /BFHER -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. % - BMEKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor Leasehold
improvement machinery  equipment vehicles building Total
H5 - RE
RELE RERKS PET HE HERT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Cost KA
Asat 1 January 2017 R2017E1R1H 19,153 5,873 6,823 3,646 30,110 65,605
Additions NE 1,983 522 783 1,398 - 4,686
Disposals HE (7,222) (637) (1,035) (1,015) - (9,909)
Exchange realignment ER AR 259 439 171 20 - 889
As at 31 December 2017 R2017E12A318
and 1 January 2018 R2018F 1A 1H 14,173 6,197 6,742 4,049 30,110 61,271
Additions NE 1,981 290 474 2,294 - 5,039
Disposals e - - - (509) - (509)
Exchange realignment R A% (153) (268) (105) 17) - (543)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31H 16,001 6,219 7,111 5,817 30,110 65,258
Accumulated depreciation ~ RitiTE
Asat 1 January 2017 201751818 11,39 3,586 4,406 3,066 4,055 26,507
Charge for the year ERX 2,869 358 746 176 823 4972
Eliminate on disposal of assets 71 E& E K il (3,960) (606) (969) (1,015) - (6,550)
Exchange realignment EREE 2 262 119 9 - 482
Asat 31 December 2017and 2017412 A31H
1 January 2018 R2018F 1A 1H 10,395 3,600 4,302 2,236 4878 25,411
Charge for the year ERTE 2,380 438 792 549 620 4779
Eliminate on disposal of assets 71 & & E Kl - - - (365) - (365)
Exchange realignment R EE (52) (138) (65) (3) - (258)
At 31 December 2018 M2018%F12A31H 12,723 3,900 5,029 2,417 5,498 29,567
Carrying amount EEE
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831A 3,278 2,319 2,082 3,400 24,612 35,691
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 4316 3,778 2,597 2,440 1813 25,232 35,860
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. % - BERRE®)

(Continued)
All the Group’s leasehold building are situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, the carrying amount of
motor vehicles included an amount of HK$1,186,000 and
HK$2,780,000, respectively in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

The Group has pledged property, plant and equipment with
a carrying amount of approximately HK$24,838,000 and
HK$24,231,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018, respectively, to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group as disclosed in Note 34.

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

AEE2HEEBFUNEE -

HZE2017F %2018 128318 -
AEMEAERERERERER
BHEEMRBESE1,186,000/8 T X
2,780,000/ 7T °

HZ=2017412A318 K20184F
12A318  AEEEREED LN
24,838,000 % 7T & 24,231,000 78 JTHY
BERME BEMEFECEITIES
AEEER —RBITRMENER (B
MizE34 M EE) -

17. REWE

As at 31 December

MR12A31H8
2018 2017
2018 FF 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Fair value AFE
Balance at beginning of year FUEERR 15,000 17,882
Disposal HE - (6,100)
Net (loss)/gain arising from change in KEYMENFEETHELAN
fair value of investment properties (E518) /W55 (200) 3,218
Balance at end of year FREH 14,800 15,000

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation purpose are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

AEERRMEEE WAKEATHET
RELEHERFBENYREDIRA
NPEEGE Y BERARRKR

EXFRHREMERLE

The investment properties shown above comprises:

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
In Hong Kong NEE
— medium-term leases —FREE 14,800 15,000
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWZE &)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 at HK$15,000,000
and HK$14,800,000, respectively has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Assets
Appraisal Limited for Hong Kong properties, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group who
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

At each of financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;
(i) assess property valuation movements when compared to
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The fair value was determined based on direct comparison
method assuming sale of the property interest in its existing
state and making references to comparable market observable
transactions of similar properties in similar locations and
conditions as available in the relevant market. Those comparable
properties are analysed and carefully weighed against all
respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in
order to arrive at a fair comparison of value.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in Note 33 to the financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$15,000,000 and HK$14,800,000 as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018, was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in
Note 34.
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REVRFEFHER  AEEEERE
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EREEF AT EEE -

EHESMENDTERS KSR
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RFEDREZLBOERETE @ BIRR
MERDEERRTHEL L2 ERE
MR 5 Al SR B AR
BRI B F] & LB 5 H) AT B
X5  DHZEAELBYEETS
o YERERGRMESEZMAE
Bh N BRES  VER AR FELE -

REMERBELZHERTE=)7
FEHBHBHNMBHRERMEI3 -

HZE2017F12A31H K%20184F 12
H31H - RE#ES 54 15,000,000
77T 1 14,800,000 8 LRI E M ED
EIREAAREERE —RIFTRED
BR(RMIFE34H5E) °
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. REWE (&)
Fair value hierarchy REEEHR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement THRIAAREEREDMEN D TER
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: BER:

Fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
RABXTABRERABEN
DNEEFE (FE3R)
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Recurring fair value measurement for: AT S ENLEERFERE
— Industrial properties located in —IRBBNIEDE
Hong Kong 14,800 15,000
14,800 15,000
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 M2017F12 A31 8 %2018 12 A
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are estimated by using 310 AEEBREWMENRATEIER
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value measurement FAE R AT EU R ) A BUBRETT b5t
is categorised under Level 3. NFEFENTBAFEIL -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

B &£

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For investment properties categories into Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy, the following information is relevant:

Class of
property
MEER

Fair value
hierarchy Valuation technique

DFEER  fAEAE

17. BEWZE &)
ATLEZH(E)

HRD B/ R FEBREIRNKE

WE - UTEHSERER

Significant unobservable input(s)

EXATTREGARE

Sensitivity

SR

Properties located in
Hong Kong

URNENEEORES

Annual Report 2018 &3

Level 3 Direct comparison
method
F3M; BEEBE

Compare properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed
and carefully weighted against
all the respective advantages of
each property in order to arrive
at a fair comparison of capital
values. Market unit value, taking
into account the differences in
location, and individual factor,
such as frontage, location and size,
between the comparables and the
property.

SEREE FHRE AR
MEELED  TREHSENE
R ERIEE  AEBRTER
EBEZHR -THENEE £2Z
BRENER - REREZ - fna]
EhBMERME 2 FNHAR
EREE-

A slight increase in the market
price would result in a
significant increase in fair
value, and vice versa.

HERG RS EHATE
BEEN - R4 -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within SERATEEREIRNMEERTZ

17. BEWZE &)
ATLEZH(E)

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: AR -
Industrial Residential
properties in properties in
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
LREE LRESB
I WITEYWE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Carrying amount at 20171 A1 H
1 January 2017 HEREE 11,782 6,100 17,882
Disposal HE - (6,100) (6,100)
Fair value changes NEEE 3,218 - 3,218
Carrying amount at 72017412 4318
31 December 2017 and K2018%F1 A1H
1 January 2018 ZHREE 15,000 - 15,000
Disposal = - - -
Fair value changes NEEEZF) (200) - (200)
Carrying amount at 2018F 12 A31HZ
31 December 2018 fRmEE 14,800 - 14,800
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

18. I ESHEE

As at 31 December

MR12A31H8
2018 2017
2018 2017 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT

Unlisted club debentures R ETRELEIES
(Note (a),(b)) (Kiat (@)~ b)) - 440
Notes: Hiat -

(a)

The club memberships are classified as available-for-sale financial
assets are stated at fair value. As at 31 December 2017, the fair value
of the club membership is arrived on the basis of a valuation carried
out by an independent professional valuer. During the year ended 31
December 2017, an impairment loss of HK$70,000 was reclassified
from available-for-sale revaluation reserve to profit or loss.

Upon application of HKFRSs 9 on 1 January 2018, unlisted club
memberships are reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets
to Financial assets at fair value through profit of loss. As at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018, the fair value of the club membership
is arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer.

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

(a)

(b)

B ES BRI AFERG A
HESREE - R20174128318 -
BB BN TEREB L EET
HEN#EITR B ESE - BE2017412
A31BILFE  REEE 70,0008 T
mA il ESEREENHERER -

H2018F 1 A1 BEREBHMEMEE
BIZ 95k - R EWHELNSELA
HEECMEEENDBEER AT ER
ABHWEMEE - N2018F 141 A
&2018F 12 A31 0 BERSHEHAD
FETIRIRE L B E T AR TR E
1Jit e

19. EEBBEE

Accelerated
depreciated tax Tax losses Total
INEBIEFTE BIEEE #mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T
As at 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H (54) 139 85
Credit to profit or loss during FNETABR
the year (Note 13) (Bia£13) 54 - 54
As at 31 December 2017 and 201712 A31H
1 January 2018 & 2018F 1A 1H - 139 139
Credit to profit or loss during HWEr AB&E
the year (Note 13) (H1a£13) - - -
As at 31 December 2018 MR20184F 12 A31H - 139 139
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20. INVENTORIES

20. &

As at 31 December

MR12A31H8
2018 2017
2018 2017 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw material B 9,030 7,725
Work in progress E& 7.280 4,796
Finished goods BIRY G 1,074 1,910
17,384 14,431
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. ES5 BRKIE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables 2 5 WGRIE 43,868 49,518
Less: accumulated provision for B REDBERE
impairment (394) (394)
43,474 49,124
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group generally allows credit period ranging from 30 days

to 90 days to its customers.

The aged analysis (based on invoice date) of the Group’s trade
receivables (after provision of impairment) as at the end of each

of reporting period is as follows:

21. EZ EWRE ()

AEE-RWEEFRANTF0AE

QOHMZEH -

AREBNERERE R E HEUGK
B (IR EREER) ERER R BN

FRECDITIAT -

As at 31 December

R12HA31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 €
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0 to 30 days 0E30H 22,246 20,759
31 to 60 days 31260 H 11,557 13,666
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 4,340 7,792
Over 90 days #1190 H 5,331 6,907
43,474 49,124

As at 31 December

M12A831H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
HKD BT 25,203 8,138
usD ETT 18,175 39,428
RMB AR 96 1,558
43,474 49,124
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. E 5 BEWFIE (9)

The Group has policy of allowing its trade customers with credit
period normally ranging 30 to 90 days or in accordance with
agreed terms of the contracts with customers. However, for
certain customers with long-established relationship and good
repayment records, a long credit period may be granted more
than 90 days.

The Group has a policy for allowance of impairment which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement including
the creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

Movement in the accumulated provision for impairment on
trade receivables is as follow:

AEEFTRRAFRTHEESER
— BN F30E0HHEE KB E
HEFHTENEOKEIEHEER -
R BRETFTAERBABERER
RERTNER  AEESEREE
BOOHMERREER-

AEBEREBERBERR - HRIER
FREY AT U 0 B B8 2 R A M AR iR 0 AT A
LREEBMALE BERSEPNER
KB EW R RS ML -

B S REWFRIEN R R E R EZ e a0
T

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Balance as at beginning of year FYEEER 394 394
Provision for impairment allowance VERIEER Y - -
Balance as at end of year FRERR 394 394

146

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,307,000 and HK$15,035,000 as at 31 December 2017
and 2018, respectively which were past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as the Group considered such balances could be
recovered based on historical experience. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

MR2017F & 2018F 12 A31H » A&
BME ZERFIERIERBRES 5
#4916,307,000 7% 7t & 15,035,000 % 7T
REUER R - Z S RUGRFN R EH
IR 180 B i 2 5 B 30 4 SR E A 18
M DTHRBREATLER A%
BERBZEHENIRE - AREEIWE
BEZSEHRNIETR -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. EZ EWRE ()

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are

not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

AT AHE AR ERENE SRR
TR BRI AT -

As at

31 December

2017

Mm12A318

2017 4F

HK$'000

FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BR 280 B R AR B 33,780
Past due less than 30 days #ER DR 30 H 6,579
Past due 31 to 60 days #HI31Z260H 4,456
Past due 61 to 90 days #mHI61 290 H 2,966
Past due over 90 days BEIO0 B M £ 1,343
49,124

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due but not impaired are generally
recoverable.

The Group’s policy for impairment loss on trade receivables is
based on an evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of the receivables which requires the use of judgment and
estimates. Provisions are applied to the receivables when
there are events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The management closely
reviews the trade receivable balance and any overdue balances
on an ongoing basis and assessments are made by the
management on the collectability of overdue balances.

Details of impairment assessment under expected credit loss
model of trade receivables for the year ended 31 December
2018 set out in Note 39.
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BB EFEHAMFE39 -
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e BTSRRI
22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HEWRIE - RERFAM
PREPAYMENTS ES
As at 31 December
M12A831H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 5
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHBT FHETT
Other receivables H b e U FIE 805 338
Deposits e 36 695
Prepayments TR 3K 6,150 2,286
6,991 3,319

23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR/AMOUNT 23. Bt —RESHE EW—

DUE FROM AN ULTIMATE HOLDING B RAER A BKIE
COMPANY
Particulars of amounts due to a director are disclosed as follows: B —REEFEFBERENT

Maximum outstanding
balance during the year

As at 31 December ended 31 December
KU E EREE L BR
MW12A31H HE12A31MBLEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 & 20174 2018 £ 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Mr. Cheuk BEAE - (26) - 23,396
The amount due from Mr. Cheuk is unsecured, interest bearing FEUG B 5 A FhIB Th R - IR F AR
in HIBOR, non-trade nature and recoverable on demand. TREREFE BIFEZHHE KA

BERYE -

The amount due to Mr. Cheuk is unsecured, non-interest E R R EFBEDEEKT  TEHE
bearing, non-trade nature and repayable on demand. BIEZFMERIEEKEE -

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7
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23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR/AMOUNT
DUE FROM AN ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of amounts due from an ultimate holding company
are disclose as follow:

As at 31 December

23. BN —BESEHE B —

[ B AR 42 IR A B FRIE (89)

e — RIS AR IR

AR B

W

Maximum outstanding
balance during the year
ended 31 December

KU E EREE L FR

M®12831H BZE12A31BLEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 & 2017 % 2018 & 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Million Easy (note a) 25 (Kita) - 11,118 - 11,118

Note: Hiat -

(@  Million Easy is a limited company incorporated in BVI that is 50%
owned by Mr. Cheuk and 50% owned by Mrs. Cheuk.

The amounts due from an ultimate holding company are unsecured,
interest bearing in HIBOR, non-trade nature and recoverable on
demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, after reorganisation on

4 August 2017, Million Easy became the Group’s ultimate holding
company.

Annual Report 2018 ¥

(a)

B H R R A R B S o AL R
ARAF - @R EERERRD RIS
50% 14w °

JEW — PR B A4 R R R FRIR T SRR AR -
BEEBRTAXFEFE BIFEHIE
B R AR ESRKIRE -

HE2017F12 A31 BILFEE 722017
FRABEMAE EEXNALREEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ERRME
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24. MAFEFTABEZNERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/OTHER E/HtemEE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (a) BAFEFABENEHEE
loss
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Unlisted club debentures (Note (a) R ETRELIES (Wit @) 440 -
440 -
Current assets MEEE
Held-for-trading security FIEEBERS 3,996 -
Key management personnel life insurance =ZE 12 A B AFRE
policies (Note (b)) (H1:®)) 17,024 -
21,020 -
(b) Other financial assets (b) EttEREE
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Key management personnel life insurance EZ &1 A 8 ASFRE
policies (Note (b)) (M1 b)) = 16,673

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 1& £ B B R A 7
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the unlisted club
debentures are reclassified from AFS financial assets. As at 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018, the fair value of the club membership
is arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent
professional valuer.

On 19 September 2013, a subsidiary of the Company has entered
into a life insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure directors of
the Company, Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk. Under the policies, the
beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of the Company and
the total insured sum is USD5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,750,000). The Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of
USD1,936,757 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,010,000). The
Group can terminate the Policies at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the Policies at the date of withdrawal,
which is determined by the upfront payments plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge and
policy expense charge. The Group receives an interest at interest rates
guaranteed by the insurer.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the other financial assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment loss. Interest income on Policies is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The entire amount of the rights under life insurance policies is
denominated in United States Dollar.

The Group has pledged the policies as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group as disclosed in Note 34.

Upon application of HKFRS 9, the key management personnel life
insurance polices with amount approximately of HK$16,673,000 are
required to be held as FVTPL as these products do no meet the HKFRS
9 criteria as solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Annual Report 2018 &3

24. B AFEFAEZENEHE
B/ HtEmEE®

Hist

(a)

(b)

H2018F 1 A1 BEREBMEMEE
AISEOSRIE - R ETMERIELRAN
HHESRHEEEHNHE - 201861
A1HK&2018F 12 A31 0 A% %e
B AT EREIB T B E G ERETT
HEESE -

R2013F9R8 198 - AARMMKE A
AIBFIASRBE (RE] AEALQ
AIESERAERERKER - RER
EoARAKMBARAZEARER
A v #4835 R % /55,000,000 7T (HHE
M #)38,750,000/8 L) - AEBAX
I8 41,936,757kt (BE R L
15,010,000 7T) © A5 B ] B b5 42 1E
REWRIEREEE BIRER S (EEURER
RSN - IS IR AR IR T FOINBRER
B R FEERERTREERRIRE
BET - REBBIZIRE QR EROF)
RUELF B ©

HE2017F12A31BILFE - Eig
BhE EE (R I R IR S AR AORAT
AIE BB ER B R - REF EWA
R EEREME2ERERER -

AFRBET 02BN S FEIARTTR
@ o

2017612 A31 8 &2018F 12 A 31
B AEBRERRE  (EAAEEE
1 — A RITRA IR (IOMEE 34 5T
&) -

REREBMBHRERFEIRE &
FA/316,673,000 8 THEEEEAER
ABRETNFEEEMBWMELAFE9
FHEAXNAERAEEREFEZ
TE - AiBRAFEFABRERE
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 25. & KRBT UREIKHH

152

BANK DEPOSITS

For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the consolidated
statements of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items
in the consolidated statements of financial position as follows:

RITER
IRESARERERMS - HER
ReSEYERTFHRRE MRTHER
(BEHIBRAREERITER - KAl
MERMIBEHRNRAELEEE
BY A A RS MR FSIAE
BAIEE - ANTFATR

As at 31 December

M®12A31H8

2018 2017

2018 & 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FHETT

Cash and bank balances Be RIRTTHER 40,333 9,431
Bank overdrafts RITHE T = (1,013)
40,333 8,418

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits. Bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market rate ranging from 0.35% to 1.75% and
1.75% to 2.75% annum as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018, respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

RERRTEHRBELAEERFENE
& N EIRITIFE R - R2017F 12 A
31H NM20185 12 A31 8 » iR1744%
DAEFBENT035%E1.75% &
1.75% & 2.75% BPIRITIIGFIRET 8. ©

RITRESEEARITERFENZE
FREUA B
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 25. & KRBT UREIKHH

BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

The Group have Renminbi (“"RMB"”), HKD and United States
Dollar (“USD") denominated cash and bank balances, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s RMB and USD denominated monetary assets at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

BITER @
REBESARE (AR BT
RET(ER]) HENES RBTL
#%o RMSAEEEHEIINERR - A
RETA AR RAHMES - NiE
EHK  AEEARYRETIHE
S EEREDMENT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 €
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
RMB ARE 420 590
usD ETT 18 16

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018, the Group has bank
deposits of approximately HK$28,505,000 and HK$21,701,000
are pledged to secure banking facility and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings. The
balance as at 31 December 2018 were carried at the prevailing
market interest rate at 1% per annum and it was denominated
in HKD.

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

BRI RIEERE T AEER
TRVE R T IRITAVTF R - 7R 2017
124318 K%2018F 12 A31H &
EEMIRTTIF 7% 28,505,000/8 7T &
21,701,000 0B FEF ARG RIT
ME A 2 EARDEE - BE
RTINS EHRBRITERE
fERR - B ZE2018F 12 A31 B4
LARITHISH RS F 1% B W IAE
JLEME ©

26 EZERAREARENRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 5
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHETT
Trade payables 25 ENHRIE 34,888 33,722
Bills payables e =R 34,073 18,493
68,961 52,215
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26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The credit period on trade payables is generally 30 to 120 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period:

26. EZENRERENERE
BHORMNFBEBNEESHRE 2302
1208 - AEEE #ES B ERKEE
BE - BERMEENRBEREESRR
T Ao

AT REHRERRREEZAHZ7
ME RN RIBNRE DN

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 €
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 11,083 6,957
31 to 60 days 31260 H 11,608 10,900
61 to 90 days 61290 H 10,115 10,238
91 to 120 days 91 & 120 H 385 5,275
Over 120 days #1120 H 1,697 352
34,888 33,722

Bills payables are all mature within 30 to 120 days. The
following is an aged analysis of bills payables presented based
on the date of bills at the end of each reporting period:

FENZHEHMN30E 120 B R EBIE - A
TASREHRBEZEBHZYH
FEAT M EREE D AT

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 12,067 6,529
31 to 60 days 31260 H 14,857 9,696
61 to 90 days 61Z90H 6,568 2,268
91 to 120 days 91& 120 H 581 -
34,073 18,493
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27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 27. HttEARIER ETE A
EXPENSES
As at 31 December
M®12A31H8
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
Salary and bonus payables FEfT$r & RAEAL 2,667 2,695
Other payables EAth E - 5/ I8 906 273
Receipts in advance FE U R = 6,058
Accrued expenses JEETE A 2,340 2,446
5,913 11,472
28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. A E

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A831BLEE

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Billings in advance of performance (Note) J& 492 B~ 538 (H17E) 3,787 -
Note: Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included as WiaF  RABBMBREENE 155% - &
“Receipts in advance” under “Other payable and accrued expense” RIER B EMEMFIERETEA]$
(note 27) were reclassified to contract liabilities. HFEWRE] (27 EF D BEEAYD

BfE-
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29. BORROWINGS

29. B

As at 31 December

MR12A31H8
2018 2017
2018 2017 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current — secured BN Ef— B H
Bank overdrafts RITE X = 1,013
Bank loans (note (a), (b), IRITER (Kat@) -~ b)
(c) and (d)) (© () 42,556 64,091
42,556 65,104
Non-current — secured JEENH— A
Bank loans RITER = 22,000
Total borrowings (EEE L] 42,556 87,104

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 5 {& &£ B % AR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

29. BORROWINGS (Continued) 29. fE R (&)
According to the repayment schedule, the bank loans and bank BEEFRFEER  RITERRIEITE
overdrafts are repayable as follows: XERWET

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within one year —FR 42,556 59,031
Over one year but within two years —FAEERRER - 24,977
Over two years but within five years MER EERAFR - 2,642
Over five years AFEMUE - 454
42,556 87,104
Less: amount classified as current W RN —FEREE
liabilities secured borrowings B IEEFRIENR
due within one year or contain BRORBEE
a repayment on demand clause BIRBEFGE (42,556) (65,104)
- 22,000
The fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings are as follows: EERZEMETNT -
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2018 2017
20185 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Fixed-rate borrowings (note (a)) EBER K@) = -
Variable-rate borrowings ESRIE
(note (b), (c) and (d)) (B1EE®) - () & (d) 42,556 87,104
42,556 87,104
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The universal life insurance loan and factoring facility (“Facility 1”) of
approximately HK$4,827,000 and HK$891,000 as at 31 December
2017 and 2018 respectively. As at 31 December 2017, Facility | was
corporate guarantee by Creative Profit, a subsidiary of the group
and secured by the policies with carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,673,000. As at 31 December 2018, Facility | was secured with
corporate guarantee provided by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited
with carrying amount of approximately HK$17,024,000. Facility | bear
interest ranged from 2.3% to 2.6% and 3.75% to 4.25% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively.

The term loan, property mortgage, overdraft and factoring facility
("Facility I1") of approximately HK$20,716,000 and HK$2,478,000
as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively. As at 31 December
2017, Facility Il was guaranteed by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs Cheuk and
corporate guaranteed by Billion Start Enterprise Limited. As at 31
December 2018, Facility Il was secured with corporate guaranteed
provided by Billion Start Enterprise Limited and Hanvey Group Holdings
Limited. Facility Il bear interest ranged from 3.1% to 6.0% and 3.6%
t0 5.3% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

The term loan, overdraft and factoring facility (“Facility 111") of
approximately HK$61,561,000 and HK$39,187,000 as at 31
December 2017 and 2018 respectively. As at 31 December 2017,
Facility Il was guaranteed by Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, secured
by the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately HK$24,838,000, investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$15,000,000 and bank deposits
HK$28,505,000 as at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2018, Facility Il was guaranteed by Hanvey Group Holdings Limited,
pledged property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
approximately HK$24,231,000, investment property with carrying
amount of approximately HK$ 14,800,000 (Note 17) and bank deposits
HK$21,701,000 (Note 25) as at 31 December 2018. Facility Ill bear
interest ranged from 2.8% to 5.5% and 2.4% to 3.5% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, respectively. The
loan approximately of HK$15,000,000 was shown as current with the
maturity date on 23 June 2019, 18 August 2019, 29 August 2019 and
30 August 2019, respectively.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
on the loan agreement.

29. B (&)

(a)

R2017F %2018F 12310 2R
ShEFRRRERE ((BREI D5A
#94,827,0007% 7t £891,0007% 7T © A
2017612 A318  @EIREEH B
AREFMREQAFNEREIUEEEY
16,673,000 BT VIR EEEHEHR < 522018
F128318  BE IHEEEEERE
fRARIEHARMER 17,024,000 7TH)
ANRAEREER - BEIREE2017F
X 2018412 A31 B ILEE D RIRFF|
K23%ZE2.6%NM3.75% F4.25% =t
B o

M2017F K2018F12A318 &
HER MEEHFR BIRREMRE
([BEN]) 5 5 A% 20,716,000 7T &
2,478,000 7T - 42017412 A318 *
BENBRRLERERRNRBEREE
EREERATRHABER 7R 2018
F12A8318 BMEIBBECEERA
AREREEZERERARREARIE
RIEEIR B E IRNE = 2017 F 12 2018
F12A31BUEFEDRIEFANE3IN%
%6.0%M3.6%%E53%:8

R2017F & 2018F 12 A31 8 + EH
B B RRERE ((BEM]) H
Bl A& 461,561,000 7% Jt &% 39,187,000
I R20175 128318 &N
BEERSARREEEREAR2017
F12A31BEREHEE A 424,838,000
BILTHOME BMEERXE BEEE
% #715,000,0008 TR IR E W) % &
28,505,000 78 7T K $R 77 17 S 1 o
HR20185 128318 & IHERESE
EZERAR A AREERREAN2018
F12 A31 B IRMEE 424,231,000 7
THYE BEEREE FEEAY
14,800,000 (Mt 5E17) B TR E Y %
DA R 88 17 17 3% 21,701,000 (Fff 3£ 25)
BIIEER - MENREZE2017FE R
20184 12 A31 B It FE D BIREF| X
28%ZE55%K%24%E35%:HE - &
FX#715,000,0007& T AENER - BIEAR
2B A20199F6 A23H 20196 8 A
18H ~ 201948 A29H K% 201948 A
300 -

B EIRR IR R R B AR A SR
A EE Y -
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30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES
The Group leased its motor vehicles under finance leases
with lease term of three to five years. Interest rate underlying
obligation under finance lease is variable at 4.7%, 5.3% and
5.2% per annum as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 respectively.

No arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

Minimum lease payments

30. Mt EHE&IE

AEEREMERELHA AR B
BA=ZZRF -K2017F12A31H
K2018F12 A31H > gh & & &IE
MAEEFNE AT EN X SRl AETF
47% ~5.3% K% 52% °

ANEE W EET L RRTEE R HE ©

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEMASEMNRK BREEEMREE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R12A31H R12A31H
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 5 2017 % 2018 5 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FHET T
Amount payable under BEHET
financial leases: FEAS5RIR
Within one year 1N 790 171 769 167
Within a period of more than 18 LA 18
one year but not more B2 F
than two years 791 154 598 143
Within a period of more than 2 LA 18
two years but not more A5 F
than five years 910 372 925 320
2,491 697 2,292 630
Less: future financial charge U8 : KK &E & A (199) (67) = -
Present value of lease MERERE
obligation 2,292 630 2,292 630
Less: Amount due for AR 12ME AR
settlement within twelve B EEECE )
months (shown under S HORE
current liabilities) BEET) (687) (144)
Amount due for settlement R121E A& B HA
after twelve months (shown & fTHI£ %8 (3E
under non-current liabilities)  EHABE ) 1,605 486

The Group’s obligation under the finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

Annual Report 2018 S5
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31. SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2017
represented the aggregate of share capital of Hanvey Group
Holdings Limited and the Company in issue as at that date. The

31. B

ZS-S

BA2017 412 A 31 BRI A5

BEEEZERAR QR RARBRNZ
HEETIRALERR - NEEN2018F

share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2018 represented 12 A 31 BORAIE AR R « K2
the share capital of the Company. Movements of the share AIRASEH AT ¢
capital of the Company are as follows:
2018 2017
2018 5 2017 &
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
Shares value shares value
vl 4= HE e B [EEE)
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T FHExT F & FHET
Authorised EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 A% 0.01%8 7T
each
At 31 December M12 4318 10,000,000 100,000 38,000 380
Issued and fully paid ERITRHBZE
At 1 January Bm1A1A - - - -
Capitalisation issue (note (a) B &1{b317 (A7iE () 750,000 7,500 - -
Issue of shares upon placing R & B 377 % 1D
(note (b)) (Htet ) 250,000 2,500 - -
At 31 December W12 HA31H8 1,000,000 10,000 - -
Notes: Htaz -

(a)

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of
the Company on 20 June 2018, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000 by
the creation of additional 9,962,000,000 shares. Pursuant to the
capitalisation issue of the Company passed by all the shareholders of
the Company on 20 June 2018, additional 749,999,999 shares were
allotted and issued to Million Easy Enterprises Ltd on 20 June 2018.

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2018 by way of share offer of 25,000,000 public
offer share and 225,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer
price of HK$0.25 per share, the net proceeds after deducting listing fee
were approximately HK$34,470,000.

(a)

(b)

BIFEARRF 2 EEREN20185F 6 A20
ABBNEMRER  AQABEBIE
5%9,962,000,000 A% B 17 #% % 7E B AN R
380,0007% JT 1% Z 10,000,0007% 7T ° 1R
BARARR2EREN2018F6 420H
BBNARRZERET EEEH
BMRAFN2018456 20 B EFEINE
2% K2 317 749,999,999 XA 15 °

20187 A128 » AR A @B I
BRBEMHO2SBTHEEED
%% 525,000,000 A M & & KR H &
225,000,000 % B & & 199 A D1 74 Bk 22 BT
GEM £ - 11k LB A& TS HIE
SEEA#) 534,470,000 7T ©
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32. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

32. ENEIHE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
% 12 % 8 25t E#R #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET FET
As at 12 June 2017 R2017F6 A12H
(date of incorporation) (FEMACAZ A E9) - - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss HARET1E & & 1B 45
for the period - (4,918) (4,918)
As at 31 December 2017 and MR2017F12A31B &
1 January 2018 2018%F 1 A1 H - (4,918) (4,918)
Loss and total comprehensive loss  F N1 &k 2 EE 1B 4258
for the year - (17,315) (17,315)
Capitalisation issue BT (7,500) - (7,500)
Issue of new share by way AR (2 & 77 =
of share offer BATHIRGD 60,000 - 60,000
Transaction cost attributable to 1T ¥TA% {7 FE15 32 Ak AR
issue of new shares (10,156) - (10,156)
As at 31 December 2018 R20184F 12 A31H 42,344 (22,233) 20,111

At 31 December 2018, the Company had reserves of
approximately HK$20,111,000 available for distribution in
accordance with the Company law of Cayman Islands (2017:
HK$nil).
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33. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. REHERIE
The Group as lessee rEBERABEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had RERE R - REBERE T AT HEE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- REHENARRKER AR TIIH
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: AT -

As at 31 December

R12A318
2018 2017
20185 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year 1F R 1,105 891
More than one year, but not more than 1 LA 1B BB 5F
five years 966 741
2,071 1,632
The Group leases PRC factory under non-cancellable operating AEBERBEIAIRECEEERAS
leases. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 5 years, with BE - A 2ESF - £HA
options to renew the lease terms upon expiry when all terms BRI SR P IR AR R AL -
are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any contingent ZEROMESREMAAES -
rentals.
The Group as lessor AEBEEREEA
Investment property was leased for a term of 2 year. At the WEMERBMR2F - NEMERR
end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted with a REED AT RREIEEE HE
tenant for the following future minimum lease payments: MEETL -
As at 31 December
R12A318
2018 2017
2018 % 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Within one year 1R 90 255
The Group leases investment properties under non-cancellable REBERBAIAGECEEEHAER
operating leases. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 3 B -mUEHR2E3IF - EHL
years, with options to renew the lease terms upon expiry when B BRI E R P IR SRS AR B E A -
all terms are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any ZEMAOMESEEMEAES -

contingent rentals.
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34. EEK A
REREEKR - THEECEETE
TFAERAEEMBTRE

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the following assets were
pledged to bank secure the Group’s banking facilities:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Property, plant and equipment L E Yy 24,231 24,838
Other financial assets Hib & mEE 16,851 16,562
Investment properties TEMEE 14,800 15,000
Pledged bank deposits BEHEFIRITER 21,701 28,505
77,583 84,905

35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. RIRE R 2

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution matched by
employees but subject to a maximum amount of HK$1,500 per
month for each employee to the scheme.

Employees of the subsidiaries and an associate in the PRC are
members of the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government. The subsidiaries and an associate were
required to contribute a certain percentage of the payroll of
their staff to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme
is to make the required contributions. There were no forfeited
contributions utilised to offset employers’ contributions for the
year. There was no forfeited contribution available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.
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36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
(a) The Group entered into the following major non-cash
transactions which are not reflected in the consolidated
statements of cash flows:

36.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into finance leases in respect of an assets with a total
value of HK$2,090,000 at the inception of the finance leases.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial

TEFRERS
(a) AEEFTIUTUARREARS
RERRBROEBIAERS -

HE2018F12A31HILFE -
AEEREIBMEREREE
2,090,000 T EER] g &M

5o

(b) MEEBELERBNHER

activities
Liabilities from financing activities BETEELHWARE
Finance Finance
leases leases Borrowing  Borrowing
due within due after  due within due after
one year one year one year one year Total
R—FR R—F#% R—FR R—F#%
E3p- ki) ZIEm BN FIEM
MEHE - MEHE EEA R st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET FERT THET TET
Net debt as at 1 January 2017 A2017 18 1H
MR FEE (203) (17) (69,558) - (69,778)
Cash flows BeRE = = (19,537) (22,000) (41,537)
Acquisitions - finance leases WESE-RBERS
and leases incentives KHEEBR (137) (486) = = (623)
Other non-cash movements Hih IR e & 196 17 25,004 - 25,217
Net debt as at and M2017%12A31H
31 December 2017 and %201851A1H
1 January 2018 MEXFE (144) (486) (64,091) (22,000) (86,721)
Cash flows RenE - - 43,535 - 43,535
Acquisitions - finance leases WEEE-RHERS
and leases incentives KHEEBR (596) (1,253) = = (1,849)
Other non-cash movements Hih IR e & 53 134 (22,000) 22,000 187
Net debt as at 201812 A31H
31 December 2018 MEKEHE (687) (1,605) (42,556) - (44,848)
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.BHM AR S
In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed elsewhere BRBAMBER Hiu 5 HENZ
in the Historical Financial Information, the Group entered into SRS AEEFT VBB S
related parties transactions:
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEE
Name of related parties Notes Nature of transaction 2018 2017
S 28 Mt XBHE 2018 F 2017 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Recurring:
rREM
Mr. Cheuk (c) Rental expense 720 360
BEA ez
Smart Hill (@) Rental income 180 188
=S G ON
Non-recurring:
FEREM
Mr. Cheuk (c) Interest income - 261
24 FEHA
Smart Hill (@) Commission paid - 163
E={3 B2
3 Wells Group (b) Interest income - 64
—HE&HE B A
Billion Start (b) Interest income - 142
B FEHA
Million Easy (b) Interest income 113 292
85 B WA
Notes: Vot

(@) Smart Hill is connected person which is wholly-owned by the sister of
Mrs. Cheuk.

(b)  Mr. Cheuk and Mrs. Cheuk, directors of the Company, are the ultimate

beneficial owner of the related company.

(c)  Mr. Cheuk, a director of the Company.
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37.

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Compensation of key management personnel

The directors of the Company are identified as key management
members of the Group and the compensation of directors and
key management is set out in Note 11 and 12.

Financial guarantee given by related parties
Further details of financial guarantees provided by the directors
and related parties are disclosed in Note 29.

Balances with connected person

The connected person Smart Hill in which the transaction with
Smart Hill falls under the definition of “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules with a
detailed disclosure of the relationship above.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the Period.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bills payables, borrowings and obligation under
finance leases disclosed in notes 26, 29 and 30, respectively, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital, and will balance its overall capital structure new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

37.

38.

BBAERS @
FTEEEAEMNSE
ANFIESHEALAEETEZERE
KE EERFEEEEMSINN
F11 K120

B R 75 /e HH W9 B ISR 4R
FE NG IRENMEERFBER
BsF 20 55 -

SBRE A TR B
REEALBENE - Lk EBE
354 GEM L #8120 2 [#4
Wi 5] mEs - B EXBR0E
B -

EXEHE
AEBERHER BRI AR SR
SRR AEBTHELYE AR
REERALR - BR - AEEHR
BRBEBTE -

AEEMERELERESFEMAEK -
BIED B PAM5E26 ~ 29 X 30 5 1Y
BEREE - - BEREREHEEARE B
HBRRENREEEBMRARRHESR
NEGER (BREEEITRARGEE) -

RABEFTHRTELGERE R
EREBHH D KRAREFERE
BAKRARSRERERBER - A #
BBBITHR D RBEITHESIED
RARSVTOEEBELRGRE -
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38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The following is the gearing ratio at the end of each reporting
period:

38. EAEE (&)

EWMERRERABBLEMT ¢

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHIT
Total borrowings (Note (a)) WBEFR (K7t (a) 78,921 106,253

Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeREEEEY
(Note (c)) (Bt () (62,034) (37,936)
Net debts (EUrE 16,887 68,317
Total equity (Note (b)) R (131 b)) 77,062 31,900
Gearing ratio BEEAR/LE 21.9% 214%
Notes: Wi -

(@)  Total borrowings represent bills payables, amount due to a director,
borrowings and obligation under finance leases.

(b)  Total equity includes share capital and reserves at the end of each
reporting period.

(c)  Cash and cash equivalents include pledge bank deposits and cash and
bank balances.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. €T A
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAEDE

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Available for sale financial assets AHEESREE = 440
Financial asset at fair value though R FEGABZNZHMEE
profit or loss 21,460 -
Financial assets measured at HEBERATTE 2 HEE
amortised cost: (B7EH 2 KA M EKFIE)
(including cash and other receivables)
— Trade receivables — B S EWGRIE 43,474 49,124
— Deposits and other receivables —Re R H AR FIE 841 1,033
— Amounts due from an ultimate — RN —ERARZERA T
holding company FRIE - 11,118
— Other financial assets —HEthemEE = 16,673
— Pledged bank deposits —BEEARITER 21,701 28,505
— Cash and bank balances —B e NIRRT 40,333 9,431
127,809 116,324
Financial liabilities cRMERE
Financial liabilities measured at big =i N =]
amortised cost: THEE -
— Trade and bills payables —EIENFIERENZRE 68,961 52,215
— Other payables and accruals —E N RIERERTE R 5,913 5414
— Amount due to a director — R —REFHIE - 26
- Bank overdrafts —RITEX - 1,013
— Borrowings —fE; 42,556 86,091
— Obligation under finance leases — R EHE A 2,292 630
119,722 145,389
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. @M TR )

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments and details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate borrowings and bank balances due to changes of
interest rates.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s exposures
of the bank balances are not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within short maturity period and thus they are not
included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy. However, management closely monitors its exposure
to future cash flow interest rate risk as a result of changes in
market interest rates will consider hedging changes in market
interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit
after income tax for the year would have been decreased/
increased by approximately HK$1,472,000 and HK$1,205,000
respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of each
of the Period and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the end of next reporting period.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities (including bank balances, trade receivables and trade
payables) denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the respective group entity at the end of each
reporting period are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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30. €@ T B (%)

ﬁj_i%@[?ﬁ (&)

BHmE
REBREHRASEEERIIEGER
MINEBIENAEEEREERE
& (BRERITES BFHRIKIBERE
SN IR WREENAT

Assets Liabilities
BE =K
As at 31 December As at 31 December
M®12831H M®12A31H

2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 & 2017 % 2018 & 2017 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET TR FET
RMB AR 809 2,419 1,372 1,918

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivities to a
10% increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
group entities against relevant foreign currency. 10% is the
sensitivity rate which represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign currency rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10% change. A positive number indicates
an increase in post-tax profit for the year HK$ strengths 10%
against RMB. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against RMB, there
would be an equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit for
the year.

BRI
TRALARENREBERINEER
SABRSNE L% R TR 10% ) 8 R
JE ° 10% BREZ L KI5 B IR G HIHMNE
EXRESIER RE BB 2 7T - RED
FEEFRUAREINENHARFREE
BHEA - YR HmEHRIL10% HWE
HBEBRE FHERTETIARE
THE 10% B ABR BEE RGN - 8
TRARBEZE10% @ BIHFRK
BEENERBFERRZE

As at 31 December

M12HA31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 €
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
RMB AR 36 50

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign currency risk
as the exposures at the end of each reporting period do not
reflect the exposure.

ARBEZRR  SRESITTER
REBIERR - AREREHRY
JeR\ ez 1~ B 2 iR [ A LB
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. @M TR )

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to
be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31 December
2018.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit loss. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information.

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables and contract assets
that are individually significant have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and
past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to design and development,
manufacturing; and distribution of watch products. As at the
end of the year, the top three debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately 42% and 51% (2017: 53% and
77.1%), of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view
of the history of business dealings with the debtors and the
sound collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable balance due
from these debtors saved for the debtor related to the impaired
trade receivable disclosed in the below. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability of the trade and other
receivables based on historical payment records, the length
of overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on
trade balances individually or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. There is no adjustment for the provision of
expected credit loss on the initial application of HKFRS9.

The directors considered the credit risk of the Group’s other
receivables is relatively low as they have a low risk of default and
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

39. 2R T A (%)

™ 5 E g ()

=EmEE ()
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk

For the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank loans and bank
overdrafts and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group has required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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39. €T A ()

™ 5 E g ()

REBEZ/EEE
REERBESRRME - AEEE
RLEREEERRBENRE LR
EHEEY  WERREENEBRM
B2 REReRENDNTE - F
EEEERTERMRITENER
B - BELRE T BN

TRAMAREFTESRABEOFR
BANIMBER - ZRRBEAEEH
ERINEHMBENZKFARZSR
BENRERRSRERE - AKX
o RBRFERORITEFGFA
REFRER > TWRTTEEAIEER
TTERER - EMIENTE SR A G
HI B JO R 19 E B KA B E e

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To TEREBEMNEREAGHERE - EF)
the extent that interest cash flows are at floating rate, the BRERERFHHNEE  NERE
undiscounted amount is derived from current interest rates at HIREARBIRESEETIRB BRIFIE o
the end of each reporting period.
Weighted Morethan ~ More than
average  Ondemand  1yearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
MEFH REX BA-F BEAmE AHR
(i g-%fn  BHRRE  BOREE BENE BERELE REE
% HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn Tén Tén TEn TER
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%E12A318
Trade payables BARMATE - 34,888 - - - 34,888 34,888
Bills payables ENZE 27% 35,246 - - - 35,246 34,073
Other payables and accrued EfEAER
expenses [ ER - 5913 - - - 5913 5913
Contract liablities anak - 3,78 - - - 3,787 3,787
Borrowings & 34% 42,979 - - - 4,979 42,556
Obligation under finance leases ~ RYETE S 5.1% 790 91 910 - 2491 2,29
123,603 91 910 - 125,304 123,509
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €t T A ()
Market risk (Continued) iR (8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HBEEmE (E)
Weighted More than More than
average  On demand Tyearbut 2 years but Total
effective or within less than less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
TETH REX s cltd BEMF AER

ERHE d-fA BORERE  BIREF  RENE ReREsR KA
% HKE000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKFOOD  HK$'000
TAR TR o T Tk T

As at 31 December 2017 R2017E128318
Trade payables BARMATE - 372 - - - 372 372
Bills payables ENZE 30 18,633 - - - 18,633 18493
Other payables and accrued EfERFER

expenses [ ER - 5414 - - - 5,414 5414
Amount due to a director Ei-4EE7H - 26 - - - 2% 2%
Bank overdrafts RIER 6.0 1018 - - - 1,018 1013
Borrowings &3 38 65,791 21,34 - - 87,025 86,091
Obligation under finance leases AT EH & 44 171 154 m - 697 630

124,775 21388 31 - 146,535 145,389
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continue

d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with repayable on demand clause based on agreed

scheduled repayments
amount includes interest

set out in the loan agreements. The
payments computed using contractual

rates. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not consider that it is probable that

the bank will exercise its

discretion to immediate repayment. The

directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will

be repaid in accordance
loan agreements.

with the scheduled dates set out in the

30. €@ T B (%)

ﬁj_i%@[?ﬁj

MEBEEEE (F)

TR IR ZKER O IRITE TR
& TR 155 = P B 197 5 AR R R R D B
HDH - ZFIABERBE O ES

HOFNBNK - KERAEEN IS
R RRREFBRBITTARAIEE
THERBEEERANRER - KARFE
FRERERTERHRBEER G
FRElE) AT 8 B HIfESR -

Maturity Analysis - bank borrowing
subject to a repayment on demand

clause based on scheduled repayments

R -ARBENRBAREEREENRTER

More than More than
one year two years
Within  butless than  but less than More than
one year two years five years five years
BR-fF BBWE
—FR BLRAME BLREF AFEUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FHET FHET
At 31 December 2018 ®2018%12A31H 42,556 - - -
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%12A318 59,031 24,977 2,642 454
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market risk(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Borrowings with repayment on demand clauses are included
in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2017, the aggregate carrying amounts of these borrowings
amounted to HK$69,558,000 and HK$64,091,000, respectively.
Taken into account the Group’s financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
lenders will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,

details of which are set out in the table below:

30. €t T B¢

™5 m b (&)

mBEEmE (E)

BEREEOERIR LB ST
B EESke—F AT - H2016F
12A31HX2017F12 A318 ' %%
EARRTE 5 B & 69,558,0008 T
164,091,000 7T © &£ AL EH
SR - RRREEREERAT
RAJRETTE BB BRI BIE R o A&
RAEERABHARTEREREER
HpEEETEER B HREE  F8
BN TE

Weighted Morethan  More than

average  Ondemand  fyearbut  2yearsbut Total
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount

ik 37 REX  RBE-§f  BEmE RS
LTk g-FR  BHORRE  BHREE BENLE BEREAE REE
% HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Thxn Thx Tén Tén Tén Tén

As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31R
- Variable-rate L 34% 2,979 - - - 42,979 42,55
Weighted More than More than

average  On demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
effective or within less than less than Over  undiscounted Carying
interest rate 1 year 1 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amount

mEYs REX A BAMF AER
RN 3-6m BONEBE  ESRDF TENE BeRERE HEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL T Tt ThEn Tt T

As at 31 December 2017 R2017E12A31R

- Variable-rate L 38 65,791 21,234 - - 87,025 86,091

The amount included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to
change if changes in variable rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of each reporting period.

HF BRI L BB E RIS B A
2RI - ERIETAE S MAE
FHHELAZ SERELD -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M| RME

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €M T A

Fair value measurements
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

—  the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liguid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices; and

—  the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and liabilities
carried at amortised cost, approximate their respective fair
values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial
instruments.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the input to the fair value measurements in its
entirety.

The table below gives the information about how the fair
value of these financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and input used).

The different level are defined as follows:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the assets
or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Annual Report 2018

AFEN B
tREELSRBEN R VEETEN
T

— ERFREGRFRGFARERR
B EECEMEERTRA
BEOAFEIZ2ENSRERE
= . &

A

- HtemEERSBRAEMNANF
BNREBEAREBEAERIR

REeERONMETE -

HHENATIRZEBEREERE
EMEmEESEa 2 A FERSE R
ArzEem TABHASEMLEE -

Y HHREMS - 2 FEFERER
FEFEZHASIKERZE X
ABEHAFEFEZEESEES
HASI1H - B2WHEIR -

TREBVNEAEEZ A FEFENS
REERGRAEGBEZ A FENAET
MER (LERAAB/BENEREA
gig) -

FTRERREMT :

s BIRRFEFAERNHEREE
FEERERTS®RE CREHR
BB ZAVEAE-

o« B2RATEIHBAKE VR
BE 2 BEANGEERAELE
(AT ELE (BDIRMB1R) P93 (B0
ARG ) B 2 WA B
B2 ATENE -

o FEIRRFEFERERMGEER
ERZATENE BREEH
BELRBIHFERAEETS
R 2B ABE (TR BEHA
2g) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. &
Fair value measurements(Continued) NEEE
Fair value Fair value Significant
31December 31 December  Fairvalue  Valuation technique unobservable
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy  and key input(s) inputs Sensitivity
0185 0175
128318 128318 kEER
EHEE NATE MATE AVESR BREANE EXTERBARE  8RE
HKS000 HK$'000
TEn TERL
Club memberships 440 40 Level?2 Market approach- 31 December 2017 None -~ N/A
Reference to 31 December 2018 None
Quoted price in
Active market
B%ueR EPE mFE-22ER WI7E12A3188 TR
M HE 01851273188
Key management 17,024 16,673 Level3 Probability-weighted 31 December 2017 An increase in the discount rate would
Personnel life discount cash flow Crediting rate: 3.6% result in a decrease in fair value, and
Insurance policies method Discounting Rate: 4.5% vice versa.
IRERBABASRE #34 I 017E125318 HREEMBEHNTERD R -
REREAE BEME :36%
BRE:45%

Key inputs include The 31 December 2018 If the above unobservable inputs to the
account value, Policy Crediting rate: 3.7% valuation model were 10% higher/
charge, Crediting rate Discounting rate: 4.0% lower while al the other variables
of Insurance policy were held constant, the carrying
And discount rate amount of the other financial assets

would decrease by approximately
HK$1,136,000 or increase by
approximately HK$1,463,000
(2017: decrease by approximately
HK$1,023,000 or increase by
approximately HK$1,318,000).

BREAZAAERS 20185128318 fi BRSO TIRRE\BES/
BE RENE RE HENZ:37% E10% BFEAMEERRTE £
REFERERE  HRE:40% thEBAEREERHL 41,136,000

BTN 146300078 T (2017
EHD01,03000EHE N
1318000%7T) °
Held for trading securities 3,996 - Lewelt Quoted price in 31 December 2018 None ~ N/A
presented as financial active market 31 December 2017 None
assefs measure at FVTPL
2HIBRATFEA 218 RETSHE WITE12A318E TR
BENERAEL 01851273188
REEEES

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 1& £ B B R A 7
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39.

40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements(Continued)

There were no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the
Track Record Period.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period.

The above table gives information about how the fair value of
these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position
approximate of their fair values.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
At the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
equity interests in the following subsidiaries:

39.

40.

ERMIA®

AFEFTE(E)

PSR B REFE 2R/ 2 ET
meEis o

AEERBH SBAENEHEHR
AT EMNE -

EREBIMAEELZTEREERTF
BERER (CHEEMABETTERE
ABUR) -

EEAR RAKEHEUBHRREK
BREERATIENEREERERA
BERRREEERFERS -

Lo NG
WA B8 - AR R T B 2
A B 1 R A

Issued and fully

Attributable equity
interest

held by the Company

ERRREES

As at 31December

R12A31

]

paid share capital/ Atthe  Principal activities
Place and date of registered capital at dateof  and place of
Name of subsidiaries incorporation the date of this report 2018 2017 thisreport  operation Notes
REREAMDRT IEERR
HEARER AR LBERAH RARRA/GREL 18F  017F FEEAH  EEBE Wit
% % %
Directly held:
ERRA:
Beyond Blossom BVI, 9 May 2017 Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investment holdingin ~ (@/
Hong Kong
B ABRERES LRk % RERR - FE
1765R98
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

40. fft B 2 BIF B (@)

Attributable equity
interest
held by the Company
ERRREES
As at 31December
R12A318
Issued and fully
paid share capital/ At the
Place and date of registered capital at dateof  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiaries ~  incorporation the date of this report 2018 2017 thisreport  place of operation Notes
RERERHB R IERBR
HEARER EME TR A S RERRE/GREAR W8F  W7F FEEAH X4 it
% % %
Indirectly held:
REHE -
Precise Time BVI, 10 May 2017 Ordinary shares US$ 1 100 100 100 Investment holding in @
Hong Kong
b REBMARES LakIER RERR B
2017458108
Big Hope BVI, 9 May 2017 Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 100 Investment holding in @
Hong Kong
i ZBRARES LRRET RESR BB
017455498
Diamond Fountain BVI, 9 May 2017 Ordinary shares US$ 1 100 100 100 Investment holding in @
Hong Kong
g5 AERERES LRR1ET REBKR B
01755898
Vast Peak BVI, 21 September 2011 Ordinary shares US$ 1 100 100 100 Investment holding in @
Hong Kong
g% REBSARES LakIER RERR B
0114594218
Talent Gift BVI, 3 January 2017 Ordinary shares US$ 1 100 100 100 Investment holding in @
Hong Kong
5 ZBRARES LRRET RESR B8
1751430
3 Wells Hong Kong, Ordinary capital 100 100 100 Trading and Distribution (5
2 September 1986 HK$1,000,000 of watches in
Hong Kong
= & 1986%F9A28 £3B1R7 1,000,000 T BRESRNE BE
Cheer China Hong Kong, 3 August 2011 Ordinary capital HK$1 100 100 100 Investment holding in ()
Hong Kong
qE &5 011%8A38 BRRAVER REER - FE
Cheer Wells Hong Kong, 2 February 2015 Ordinary capital HK$10,000 100 100 100 Investment holding in ()
Hong Kong
s Bk 201552828 EBIRA 10,0007 RERR - FE
Creative Profit Hong Kong, 22 May 2008 Ordinary capital HK$10,000 100 100 100 Investment holding in ()
Hong Kong
il &k 008458221 ERIRA 10,0007 REER - FE
Shenzhen 3 Wells PRC, 8 August 2005 Registered capital 100 100 100 Manufacturing of )
HK$10,000,000 watches in Peaple’s
Republic of China
AI=H HE 200558 A8H 3t & 710,000,000/ 7 100 100 100 @EEE )
mEARLA
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

All subsidiaries now comprising the Group have adopted 31
December as their financial year end date.

Notes:

(@  No audited financial statements have been prepared since its date of
incorporation as it is incorporated in a jurisdiction where there is no
statutory audit requirement.

(b)  The audited statutory financial statements of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated/established in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting principles
and financial regulations applicable to enterprises incorporated/
established in Hong Kong and in the PRC were audited by:

Name of Subsidiaries

Financial year

40. it B~ B F1E (@)

AEERBETATEHE QRS RN
NRANBAYBRFEFEH -

(a)

(b)

AR MR SZ AT BDARE R I A TE &
BHE - MR B A B AR B
AR S BRI TSR

ARARREE &P EEMKRL K8
MR RIMEREOREMBIHMRDRE
BRAREEE RPEEMKL R E
EHEASHRAIRMERERE - &
P i

Name of auditor

o) PNER=E BBREE 3 R

3 Wells Year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
=3 HZE2017F %2018 12 A3V HIEFE Bt EBRAERAR
Cheer China Year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B HZE2017F%2018F 12 A31HILFE Bt EBRAERAR
Cheer Wells Year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
(RS HZE2017F %2018F 12 A3 HIEFE BEEtEEREaRAR

Creative Profit
=xl

Shenzhen 3 Wells
RIN=F

Annual Report 2018 &3

Year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
HZE20177F M2018F 12 A31BIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
HE2017F R2018F 12 A31 HIEFE

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
B et EHIERRA A

AYTRESHMEBRERTERF
AYMERESMEBAERTERF
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

41. A 7] B B AR R 3k

As at 31 December

HZ12A31H

2018 2017
As at 31 December 2018 BZ2018%F12831H 2018 & 2017 %
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR FET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in subsidiary RBREIMEE - -

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables and prepayments Hofth JE U R IE R FE T AR 2,960 1,319
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE U [B) 2 BT 8 B 308 1,644 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEHEIRE 26,594 -
31,198 1,319
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accrued expenses Hin T RBRESER 1,087 225
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries [ B R T 8 2 B FE - 6,012
1,087 6,237
Net current asset/(liabilities) FBRBEE(Bf) 30,111 (4,918)
Total assets less current liabilities BEELAERADEE 30,111 (4,918)
Net asset/(liabilities) BEE/(AE) 30,111 (4,918)

Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital B 37 10,000 -
Reserves & 32 20,111 (4,918)
Total equity ERAE 30,111 (4,918)

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2019 and signed on

its behalf by:

CHEUK Sin Cheong Clement
EEE
Executive Director

HITEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EEEN2019F3 A 18 B R IXAET %
RAYTBRE  THTWATRAERSE

AU Corona Ching Mei

BEx

Executive Director

HITEF

MERZEFEMBHER ZAKAS -

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited 15 {& & B B R A 7
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42. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 42. #EEH
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had WMEHARE  AEEBWEFATMNE
no significant events occurred. REH -

43. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 43. REF BRE U HREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and FER 201993 A 18 A& RIZHET)
authorised for issue by the Directors on 18 March 2019. BIZ MWK -
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last three financial years. The financial
information for the year ended/as at 31 December 2018 is extracted
from the consolidated financial statements in this annual report while
the relevant information for the years ended/as at 31 December 2016
and 2017 is extracted from the Prospectus.

Revenue Uy 2%

(Loss)/profit before taxation  BRELAI (BE) HA

Income tax expenses FrEHAX

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) EF

Other comprehensive (loss)/ FREMZ2E
income for the year (B18) WA

Total comprehensive (loss)/ FRZ2E(BR)

income for the year WAL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Current assets REBEE
Total assets EEHE
Current liabilities REBAE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Net assets EERE

NTEBAEBRBEZEAMBREEZER
MEFHEERBEHRE - EBIZ 20185 12
A31BIEEE 72018412 A31 BT
BERBE A AFREEE W ERE - ME
Z2016E %2017 12 A31 BIEEE R
20164 K& 2017412 A 31 BWIEBAEBHE

Results of the Group
for the year ended 31 December
AEEBE12A3MBLEFEZ¥E

2018 2017 2016
2018 & 20174 2016 5
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET FHE T
182,478 174,817 151,892
(4,501) 6,016 5,902
(2,603) (2,056) (1,835)
(7,104) 3,960 4,067
(78) 490 (1,103)
(7,182) 4,450 2,964

Assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December

AEBR12A3MBZEERER

2018 2017 2016
2018 & 20174 2016 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT
51,070 51,439 57,505
150,903 132,601 123,540
201,973 184,040 181,045
123,306 129,654 153,578
1,605 22,486 17

77,062 31,900 27,450
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